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COMPANY PROFILE
NGRS

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”; stock code: H shares: 01211 (HKD counter);
81211 (RMB counter); A shares: 002594) is principally engaged in
automobile business which mainly includes new energy vehicles,
handset components and assembly services, rechargeable batteries and
photovoltaics business. Meanwhile, with its technological superiority, the
Group actively develops urban rail transportation business segment.

As a pioneer and leader in the global new energy vehicle industry, relying
on its strong technological accumulation in the fields of power batteries,
motors and electronic control and through continuous technological
innovation, the Group has developed its long-term and sustainable core
competitive advantages which established the leading position of the
Group in the global new energy vehicle industry and accelerated the
transformation and upgrade of the global automobile industry.

BYD is one of the leading rechargeable battery manufacturers in the global
arena. As to the field of consumer batteries, the Group’s li-ion batteries are
widely used in various consumer electronics products and new intelligent
products, major clients of which include leading consumer electronics
manufacturers such as Samsung and Dell, as well as global leading
professional robot brands such as Ecovacs. As to the field of power
batteries, the Group has developed “Blade Batteries”, the highly safe LFP
batteries, to better meet the urgent demand of safety in the market, and
to speed up the pace of LFP batteries returning to the mainstream market
of power batteries. As to the field of energy storage batteries, the Group
focuses on applications such as power grid energy storage, industrial
and commercial energy storage and household energy storage to provide
cleaner and more sustainable energy storage solutions to customers.

As an important move of the Group in the field of clean energy, the
photovoltaics business has a complete industrial chain layout covering
silicon wafer, solar cells, photovoltaic modules and photovoltaic system
application, etc. It connects all processes from energy collection, storage
to application. The Group will proactively develop new technologies to
promote the continuous upgrade of its products.

As a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing enterprise,
the Group provides world-renowned customers with one-stop services
including new materials development, product design, research and
development, components and machine manufacturing, supply chain
management, logistics, after-sales and other etc. The Group engages in
diversified market segments, such as smart phones, tablet computers,
smart home devices, game hardware, drones, Internet of Things, robots,
communication equipment and medical and health equipment. The
competence of the Company in highly vertical integration enhances its
ability to provide customers with a full range of services, and quickly and
efficiently respond to changing demands.

Urban rail transportation business is an important area for the Group’s
future development. With its technology and cost advantages in the area
of new energy, the Group has successfully developed medium-capacity
“SkyRail” and low-capacity “SkyShuttle” with high efficiency and low cost,
which, together with new energy vehicles, achieves the three-dimensional
coverage of urban public transportation, and drives the long-term and
sustainable development of the Group while helping alleviate urban traffic
jam and air pollution.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Wang Chuan-fu
Li Qian

LEGAL ADDRESS

No. 1 Yan’an Road
Kuichong Sub-district
Dapeng New District
Shenzhen
Guangdong Province
The PRC

AUDITORS
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 1712, 17th Floor

Tower 2 Grand Central Plaza

No. 138 Shatin Rural Committee Road
New Territories

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER

OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR AND MEDIA RELATIONS CONSULTANT

iPR Ogilvy Ltd.

Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606
Email: byd@iprogilvy.com

WEBSITE

www.bydglobal.com

STOCK CODE

H Shares: 01211 (HKD counter); 81211 (RMB counter)
(The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(“Hong Kong Stock Exchange”))

A Shares: 002594 (Shenzhen Stock Exchange (“SZSE"))
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BYD Company Limited
LEmBRBARAE

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
M%REE

INTERIM RESULTS FOR THE SIX MONTHS ENDED 30

BE-Z-_=FXA=tHLXEAPHE

The sales of the Company’s new energy vehicles continued to
rank first in the world with increasing market share and expanding
brand influence.

Technical innovation boosted product development and improved
multi-brand hierarchical deployment, which has brought the
Company’s new energy vehicle business to a new level.

The Company accelerated its expansion in overseas markets and
speeded up the development of its new energy passenger vehicle
business in overseas markets, so as to further expand market
space.

In terms of electronics business, the Company deepened its
cooperation with major overseas customers, actively expanded
into new business segments and kept optimizing product
structure.

With improving brand strength, expanding scale advantage
and strong ability to control industrial chain cost, the Company
has effectively dealt with intensified industrial competition and
challenges brought by the withdrawal of new energy vehicle
subsidies.

JUNE 2023 (THE PERIOD) E(EHW)

Turnover 72.72% to RMB260,124 million
B ZEARY260,124E 8T
Gross profit 134.36% to RMB47,673 million
EA EARMEATB73EETT
Profit attributable to owners of the parent 204.68% to RMB10,954 million
BER AR A F ZAR®109548 8T
Earnings per share 204.03% to RMB3.77
GREF EARESTTT
HIGHLIGHTS BE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY ANALYSIS AND REVIEW
Automobiles and Batteries Business

In the first half of 2023, the political and economic situation across
the world remained complex. Central banks of various countries
continued their policy of raising interest rates to combat inflationary
pressures, which exerted a certain degree of suppression on
economic activities. Clouded with uncertainties such as the Russia-
Ukraine conflict and extreme high-temperature weather, the recovery
progress of the global economy remained uncertain. Despite the
complexity and severity of the international environment, China’s
economy still demonstrated strong resilience, with market demand
gradually recovering, macro policies showing their effectiveness,
and the national economy maintaining a recovery and positive trend.
Although the “triple pressures” of shrinking demand, supply shock and
weakening expectations have been alleviated, the market enthusiasm
and endogenous momentum of economic growth are still insufficient.
According to the data released by the National Bureau of Statistics,
the GDP in the first half of 2023 achieved a year-on-year increase of
5.5%.
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

In the first half of the year, China’s automobile market experienced
the combined impact of factors such as the changes in promotional
policy and market price fluctuations in the first quarter, demand has
been suppressed. With the clarification of central and local policies
to promote consumption and the China VI Emissions Standard for
Vehicles, coupled with the successive launch of highly competitive
new models, market demand gradually recovered. According to the
statistics from the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
the production and sales volume of automobiles in China were
13.248 million units and 13.239 million units in the first half of
2023, respectively, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.3%
and 9.8%, respectively. In particular, the growth of new energy
vehicles remained outstanding and achieved a record high, with
its production and sales volume amounting to 3.788 million units
and 3.747 million units, respectively, representing a year-on-year
increase of 42.4% and 44.1%, respectively, and its penetration rate
rising steadily to 28.3%, representing an increase of 2.7 percentage
points as compared to 2022. During the first half of 2023, Chinese
automakers capitalized on the shift towards electrified, intelligent
and networked vehicles, emerging as strong competitors in a fierce
market. They rapidly increased their brand influence and achieved
breakthroughs in premiumization. The competitiveness of Chinese
local brands has been driven to transform from “quantitative
change” to “qualitative change”, and has entered a new stage of
internationalized development. According to the statistics from the
General Administration of Customs of the People’s Republic of China
consolidated by the China Association of Automobile Manufacturers,
in the first half of 2023, China’s auto exports amounted to 2.341
million units, representing a year-on-year increase of 76.9%,
surpassing Japan to become the world’s largest automobile exporter.
In particular, 795 thousand units of new energy vehicles were
exported, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.2 times. On top of
industrialization and marketization, the new energy vehicle business is
gradually stepping into a new stage of high-quality development on a
large scale and globalization basis.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The development of new energy vehicles is a strategic choice for the
high-quality development of China’s automobile industry in the new
era and is also an inevitable path towards green development, which
also plays an important role in realizing the goals of carbon peaking
and carbon neutrality. In order to further consolidate and expand
the development advantages of the new energy vehicle industry, the
State has introduced a series of industrial policies to continuously
improve infrastructure construction, optimize the purchasing and
using experience, and strengthen the consumption foundation. In
May 2023, the National Development and Reform Commission and
the National Energy Administration jointly issued the Implementing
Opinions on Accelerating the Construction of Charging Infrastructure
and Better Supporting New Energy Vehicles to the Countryside Policy
and Rural Revitalization ({BIRINRIEEFTEEMERIEERS B IF#E
TRAE NFEMTIREAE S R)) to optimize the environment for the
purchase and use of new energy vehicles, and to proactively promote
the penetration of new energy vehicles into the lower-tier markets. In
June, three government authorities including the Ministry of Finance
jointly issued the Announcement on Continuation and Optimization of
Policies for Reduction and Exemption of Vehicle Purchase Tax on New
Energy Vehicles (EEREEFE/LFAER /T E E 8 B TR R BUR
BIAE)), further extending the period of the policy to 31 December
2027, and the efforts for reduction and exemption will be gradually
phased out on an annual basis to stabilize the market expectation
and promote the further release of the consumption potential of new
energy vehicles. In the same month, the General Office of the State
Council issued the Guiding Opinions on Further Construction of a
High-quality Charging Infrastructure System ((ERE—FEESEE

BEMERIEE ZMIEEE R)) to better meet the needs of the public
in purchasing and using new energy vehicles, which is conducive to
promoting the green and low-carbon transformation of transportation
and the construction of a modernized infrastructure system.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, traditional consumer electronics
saw weak market consumption and sluggish demand for products
in the first half of the year, which affected the demand for upstream
batteries. In terms of the energy storage field, benefiting from the
consistent perfection in the energy storage policy system, significant
breakthroughs made in technology, strong demand in the global
market, continuous improvement in business models and the
acceleration of the energy storage standard development process,
the energy storage industry continued its high growth momentum
in the first half of the year. As for the photovoltaic industry, under
the guidance of the carbon neutrality wave, the global demand
for photovoltaics continued to be strong, China’s photovoltaic
industry maintained a robust momentum with achieving growth while
maintaining stability, and the production volume in key procedures of
the industrial chain has achieved high growth.
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BYD Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

Handset Components and Assembly Business

According to the statistics from IDC, a market research institute, in the
first half of 2023, the shipment of global smart phones reached 0.53
billion units, representing a year-on-year decline of 11.3%, declining
for eight consecutive quarters. China’s smart phone industry continued
to be under pressure and its demand remains weak. According
to the data released by the China Academy of Information and
Communications Technology, in the first half of 2023, the shipment
of domestic mobile phones reached 130 million units, representing a
year-on-year decline of 4.8%; in particular, the shipment of 5G smart
phones was 102 million units, representing a year-on-year decline of
6.4%, accounting for 78.9% of the shipment of mobile phones in the
corresponding period. According to the statistics from IDC, in the
first half of 2023, global PC shipments fell 21.7% year-on-year to 119
million units, similar to the level before the 2019 epidemic. The global
tablet computers shipments reached 59 million units, representing a
year-on-year decline of 24.6%.

BUSINESS REVIEW

BYD Company Limited (“BYD” or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, “the Group”) is principally engaged in the automobile
business which mainly includes new energy vehicles, handset
components and assembly business, rechargeable batteries and
photovoltaic business. Meanwhile, with its technological superiority,
the Group actively develops urban rail transportation and other
business segments. In the first half of 2023, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately RMB260,124 million, representing a year-
on-year increase of 72.72%, among which, the revenue from the
automobiles and related products, and other products amounted
to approximately RMB208,824 million, representing a year-on-year
increase of 91.11%; the revenue from the handset components,
assembly service and other products amounted to approximately
RMB51,090 million, representing a year-on-year increase of 24.40%.
These business segments accounted for 80.28% and 19.64% of the
Group'’s total revenue, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Automobiles and Batteries Business

As a pioneer and leader in the global new energy vehicle industry,
relying on its precise strategic layout, leading technical strength,
and profound market insights, the Group has achieved substantial
business development against the background of increasingly fierce
competition in the industry and steadily promoted the upgrading of
brand power and the strategic layout of going abroad. According to
data from the China Automobile Association, in the first half of 2023,
the market share of the Group’s new energy vehicles further expanded
to 33.5%, an increase of 6.5 percentage points compared with 2022,
continuing to consolidate its leading position in China’s new energy
vehicle industry, and it also continued to rank No. 1 in global sales,
spreading its brand influence continuously.

In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, relying on the
continuous application of core technologies and precise market
strategies, the Group took the lead in sales in the first half of 2023,
achieving a substantial growth of nearly double that of the same
period last year, and continued to hit a record high, ranking first in the
sales volume of passenger vehicles among Chinese auto companies.

Technology innovation is the core driver of high-quality development.
Relying on its strong research and development genes, the Group
further launched a series of world-leading forward-looking and
revolutionary technologies based on continuously promoting the
application of existing technologies. In the first half of 2023, the
Group released the “e* Platform (%P 7) ” and “DiSus (£%)”
technologies, which further enhanced the Group’s comprehensive
competitiveness and lifted its business development to a higher
level. Based on the four-motor independent driver as the core, the
“e* Platform” technology completely reconstructs the characteristics
of new energy vehicles in three aspects of perception, control and
execution, providing consumers with a cross-era product featuring
ultimate safety, performance and experience. As the world’s first
intelligent body control system dedicated to new energy vehicles,
the “DiSus” technology breaks the fragmented development model
and systematically considers the vertical control of new energy
vehicles, aiming to bring users the ultimate driving experience that
takes into account both comfort and controllability with the technical
advantages of high intelligence, safety and protection, stable driving
and full coverage. The product matrix of the “DiSus” system includes
“DiSus-C”, “DiSus-A” and “DiSus-P”, and it will also be installed
in various brand models of the Group one after another, greatly
improving the driving experience of consumers in terms of comfort,
controllability, safety, off-road performance and other dimensions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

Relying on the continuous iteration and innovation of the Group’s
core technologies, the Group’s passenger vehicle business has
gradually formed a multi-brand gradient layout consisting of the
“BYD” brand, the “Denza” brand, the “Yangwang” brand and the
“FANGCHENGBAOQ" brand, covering from home to luxury, from
mass to personalized, fully satisfying users’ automobile needs in
all scenarios. During the period, the Group steadily promoted the
development of various brands, and the multi-brand strategy achieved
initial results.

In the first half of 2023, relying on precise insights into consumer
demand, the Group actively optimized the product matrix of the “BYD”
brand and launched several iterative and new models, and it also
further promote the “price parity between fuel-engine vehicle and
electric vehicle” initiative to continuously consolidate the competitive
advantage. As the Group’s first passenger vehicle brand, the “BYD”
brand has formed two series of products, including the “Dynasty”
series named after dynasties and the “Ocean” series named after
“Marine Life” and “Fleet”. The “Dynasty” series perfectly integrate
the leading technology and Chinese fashion trend to create Chinese
fashion and smart new energy vehicles, with five family products of
“Han”, “Tang”, “Song”, “Qin” and “Yuan”. As one of the signature
products of domestic brands’ high-end process, “Han” has continued
to be popular since its launch. During the period, the “Han” family
was completely rejuvenated, and “Han EV Champion Edition”, “Han
DM-i Champion Edition” and “Han DM-p Ares Edition” were officially
launched. The product strength was comprehensively improved,
subverting the mainstream B-segment sedan market. “Tang” is the
Group’s medium/large flagship SUV series product, and the launch of
“Tang DM-i Champion Edition” has further strengthened the product
competitiveness of the “Tang” family. For the “Song” family, “Song
PLUS” is the fastest new energy SUV among Chinese auto brands
to achieve sales of 500,000 units, and the “Song PLUS Champion
Edition” has been newly launched; and the “Song Pro Champion
Edition” was also launched during the period, helping the “Song”
family continue to lead the new energy SUV market with strong
product strength. For the “Qin” family, “Qin PLUS DM-i Champion
Edition”, as the first iterative model of the year, shocked the market
immediately after its launch, helping the “Qin” family to become
China’s first new energy A-class sedan IP with cumulative sales of one
million. For the “Yuan” family, “Yuan PLUS", as the first A-class SUV
equipped with “e-Platform 3.0”, maintains hot sales, leading the pure
electric SUV market.

ERRENAEBEZORMHFEERERH - K&
@i)ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%éiﬂ/ﬁkm&tﬁLJuuﬁéﬁ (B2 o
& TMPEIRmERITTREN ] BEAEENS MR

BB BERFXAISE  KARIEAMEL 2
ﬁﬂﬁﬁ}g,@)’iﬁé\%gﬁﬁﬁﬁi?ﬂi o iR - A&

BEmiEERTIHE 2 RERIE R -
TECFEY¥F KEYHEEEFTLNBER

"/ AEERBGE | RIGEMRERE - #EH
SHRUERREHER  #E—SHECREFE]
BEZEARFED - (b@ | REIEAREEY
MRAERE AT UABRRSEN L] R
NCEEEYIRIEEISENNEE]IZINSEMAR
FIEMR - [T RY G E OB BB LT E
BEe - ITERE - BRENTERAE  ETHESR
DETE] TR TRINMTIEARERNER °
ZEAPEAETRESHLENERZ— BLD
ARFSERGE - BETR - I [ZIREZER
o DEEVEEM] - [EDM-iE = i | F1[ % DM-p &
RIEX EH - ERAOE2EREA  EEEZRBE
BEMYG - [EHEARNEE P KA EESUVRYE
o [EDM-IBERINHEL - E— S malEIRk
NERBEF N - [RIREP @ [RPLUSIEAHRES
BHRERRERS0E HEENFEERSUV - [RPLUS
WERGFHEL  [RPromERI AR LT - B
IR IR bR BASE KA EE & 1 5 48 3| B #T B2 R SUV T
15 o [RIKMEP - [RPLUS DM-BER 1ERRNEE
BEKARER - FHEISIEMS - B[R IREK
ATEEEREEENFTERARBEIP - [JTTIRK
o [JTPLUSIEAEH e 63.0) 8 & SRAL B I
SUV -« $FEEGY - EIAEESUVTIE ©



Interim Report 2023
ZE_=FRHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The “Ocean” series adopts the design concept of ocean aesthetics,
with a product position aimed at younger generations, to further
satisfy the diversified needs of consumers. Among the “Marine Life”
series, the pure electric vehicle product “Dolphin” continued to take
the lead, winning both championships of pure electric sedan and AO-
class vehicle in the first half of 2023. The first pure electric sports
activity coupé “Seal” equipped with “CTB Cell-to-Body Integration”
technology was launched in May, further enriching consumers’
choices. The new-generation mainstream vehicle “Sea Gull” was
officially launched in April. Based on the technical empowerment of
“e-platform 3.0, it stood out in the fierce AOO-class sedan market, and
its sales performance increased month by month. In the “Fleet” series,
“Destroyer 05 Champion Edition” was launched in April, continuing to
meet the diverse needs of users for cars, and receiving good sales
and reputation in the A+ class sedan market.

As the Group’s brand focuses on the new energy luxury vehicle
market, the “Denza” brand builds its core competitiveness with
leading new energy and safety technologies, smart luxury product
quality, and user eco-services system. “Denza D9” has been a hot
seller since its launch, which is the first luxury MPV under the “Denza”
brand, integrating luxury, intelligence, power, and safety. In the first
half of 2023, “Denza D9” ranked first in the sales of luxury MPVs worth
more than RMB300,000, firmly occupying the leading position in the
new value benchmark of luxury MPVs in China. With the steady growth
of the brand force, the “Denza” brand launched the smart and luxury
shooting-brake SUV “Denza N7” with profound market insight and
outstanding technological innovation. “Denza N7”, as a shooting-brake
SUV for younger users, is equipped with exclusive car audio system in
cooperation with the French luxury audio brand Devialet. The “DiSus-A”
intelligent air body control system is also installed for the first time,
which comprehensively enhances the luxurious style of “Denza N7~
from the three aspects of intelligent cockpit, intelligent driving and
intelligent chassis. “Denza N7” was unveiled at the Shanghai Auto
Show in April. Its innovative breakthroughs in design, intelligence,
control and comfort that subvert the traditional perspectives have
been positively recognized by consumers.

EEENWE DT

DEFIRIIRABFREBNRER  UEFEN
EmEL  E—FREEFZILILBEETHK - [8
AEWMIR - MERMESHR I EERR &
BB =FLHFAETEERARTERFER
BE - BEICTBELES — R IRMNHAEDE
BEBENITNERARF LT T LEHE
EMEE - RIAKPENEBIXOAER L
M EReF &3.0/M I EE - MR HIACORES
EmGHANL  HERREAES - [EEIRT
ho [REEGCEERIODALT  HEWERFPZ
BIERREFR  EA+RBEM LT EREEAR
SR o

(B R EAAEE T IRFERRELEMS
MM - UBENFERAZ 2RI BEREE
MREAERAFEERBER  BEMEZOES
7o B2 IREPERZEMPV[EZDIE52E &
B Bh - LTER—F EmEAM —T-=F
FEFEEIENLZEMPYVTSHEES — F
FIHEFRBESREMPVHEEIZIENS|EHAL - BE
MBS BENE (B2 ]REURRNTSR
RFBERRMEH - R EERERBSUVIE
N7 o [BEN7TMHEA—FERFEAFPRENE
HBSUV - BRELZENEEERETREAENSE
BEHZE TEHEZE-AISEERESEHR
G NEEEER - BREN BEREEZXH
| 2EHEATEENTIOZERR o [BEN7IRAM
AEEsERE=A HEBEHERGEANZE - S5

BRI SFEFEFRY - [EDEBEMTEEAA

11



12

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

During the period, with the maturity and application of core
technologies such as “e* Platform”, the Group officially launched a
new high-end brand “Yangwang” at the beginning of the year, which
will open up the million-RMB-worth new energy market with subversive
technologies and products, and reshape the high-end brand values in
the new energy era. “Yangwang U8”, a million-RMB-worth new energy
hardcore SUV and “Yangwang U9”, a million-RMB-worth battery
electric performance supercar were unveiled at the Shanghai Auto
Show in April, receiving a lot of market attention and becoming the
most eye-catching focus. “Yangwang U8” started the pre-sale at the
same time. It is equipped with “e* Platform” technology and “DiSus-P”
intelligent hydraulic body control system to realize all-round intelligent
control of the body, and it truly achieved the perfect balance of
extreme off-road capability, comfort and luxury, making the driving
experience more imaginative.

In addition, the professional and personalized brand was officially
named “FANGCHENGBAO” in June. The “FANGCHENGBAQO” brand
is based on the growing individual needs of consumers and integrates
the Group’s powerful new energy technologies. Through a technical
platform with professional standards and pure focus, the Group will
create more extreme, unique and free new species products, and
work with users to continuously unlock the future of personalized life of
autos.
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While consolidating and expanding its development advantages in
the domestic market, the Group has been accelerating overseas
market expansion by relying on its comprehensive strength of “leading
technology, leading safety, leading quality and leading market”. The
Group’s new energy passenger vehicles have entered more than 50
countries and regions including Japan, Germany, Australia, Brazil
and the United Arab Emirates, ranking among the top sellers in many
markets, and gaining recognition of consumers all over the world.
During the period, the Group exhibited eight new energy vehicles at
the 44th Bangkok International Motor Show in March, and released the
standard range version “Dolphin”. In the same month, the Group held
a brand release and new model launch conference in Mexico City, and
launched three pure electric models, “Han EV”, “Tang EV” and “Yuan
PLUS”, opening up a new pattern in the Mexican passenger vehicles
market. In June, the Group launched “Yuan PLUS” in the United Arab
Emirates, which had passed localization and high-temperature tests
to ensure that users can get the best driving experience, opening a
new chapter in the Middle East passenger vehicles market. As the
Group’s first global model, “Yuan PLUS” (also known as “BYD ATTO
3"), with its outstanding design, technology, performance and user
experience, has achieved both good sales and market reputation in
the international market. It won the monthly sales champion of pure
electric vehicles in Thailand, Israel, New Zealand and Singapore many
times, and also won the sales champion of pure electric vehicles in
Thailand in the first half of 2023. In addition, adhering to the concept
of win-win cooperation, the Group continued to strengthen cooperation
with international partners in the development of vehicle electrification,
and joined hands with many high-quality global dealers to provide
local consumers with high-quality new energy vehicle products and
services, thereby promoting the transformation of global vehicle
electrification. With the continuous deepening of overseas layout, in
March, the foundation stone of the Group’s first overseas passenger
vehicle production base was laid in Thailand, injecting new vitality into
the development of the local new energy vehicle market.

In the first half of 2023, despite the challenges such as intensified
competition in the auto industry and cancellation of subsidies for
new energy vehicles, the Group’s new energy passenger vehicle
business continued to maintain good profitability with the continuous
improvement of brand power, continuous expansion of scale
advantages and strong cost control capabilities of the industrial chain,
coupled with the decline in prices of upstream raw material.
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In the field of battery electric buses, the Group carried out in-
depth market development, launched quality products with leading
technology, optimized its business models, worked with various
partners to continuously improve the quality of urban public
transportation services and lead the transformation of electrification of
global public transportation. The Group continued to explore overseas
markets, which contributed to the continuous growth of the sales of
overseas buses.

In the field of urban rail transit, the Group focused on solving urban
microcirculation and last-mile problems by launching the medium-
capacity “SkyRail” and low-capacity “SkyShuttle” with proprietary
intellectual property rights, providing effective solutions to traffic jams
in cities all over the world. For the “SkyShuttle” project, in May, the
first “Happy Sky Shuttle (BiZ452E)” in Dawang Mountain, Hunan,
which was positioned as leisure tourism, has been officially opened,
which would effectively promote the upgrading of the regional tourism
industry and promote the integrated development of the urban leisure
tourism industry.

In terms of external cooperation, the Group actively strengthened
cooperation with leading partners in different professional fields
around the world. In the first half of 2023, the Group deepened its
cooperation with Nvidia, the world’s leading artificial intelligence
computing manufacturer, to jointly develop vehicles that are safer
and intelligent for consumers. The Group also signed a strategic
cooperation agreement with Weichai Power to establish a more
comprehensive and in-depth strategic cooperation relationship in the
new energy field by utilizing the advantages of both parties, thereby
helping China’s new energy commercial vehicle industrialization
develop toward a new stage. In addition, the Group reached a
strategic cooperation with Santander, a multinational banking group,
to provide auto finance solutions for local dealers or consumers in
Mexico and Brazil, and actively promote the upgrading of local green
transportation consumption.
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In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group continued to carry out
in-depth development and maintained its leading position in domestic
technology. Product R&D and capacity expansion went smoothly
during the year, which contributed to the steady development of the
battery business. While protecting our own power battery demand,
the Group also continued to actively expand external customers and
accelerate the market-based deployment. The Group’s energy storage
business covered grid energy storage, industrial and commercial
energy storage, household energy storage, providing global
customers with comprehensive and advanced technology and product
solutions and facilitating the new energy storage industry to achieve
leapfrog development. In respect of the photovoltaic business, under
the guidance of the “dual carbon” goal, the Group accelerated new
technology R&D to further build up its comprehensive competitive
advantages and prepare for the rapid development of the industry.

Handset Components and Assembly Business

The Group is a global leading high-end platform-based manufacturing
enterprise, providing customers with one-stop services including
product design, research and development, components and machine
manufacturing, supply chain management, logistics, after-sales and
other etc. With a wide range of businesses, the Group engages in
diversified market segments, such as consumer electronics and new
intelligent products. With industry-leading R&D and manufacturing
strength, efficient mass production experience, diversified product
portfolio and abundant customer base, the Group actively increased
its market share and continued to optimize its business structure.
Under the severe market environment, its business still showed strong
resilience and had entered a new cycle with high-quality and high-
speed growth.

With respect to the consumer electronics business, the Group, relying
on top-notch R&D and solid product design and manufacturing
capabilities, continued to explore key customers’ needs and
strengthen strategic cooperation with them. As a result, despite
the market downturn, it still achieved an increase in market share
and growth in revenue, further consolidating its leading position in
the industry. The Group actively expanded its business with major
overseas customers, continuously increased its market share and
shipments, and strengthened its position in its supply chain. The
mass production of new categories of structural components was
progressing well, and the business maintained growth momentum.
The Group also continued to serve Android customers, but its revenue
from the Android business was affected by the weak demand of the
smartphone market.
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In terms of the new intelligent product business, with the Group’s well-
established business network and excellent customer reputation in
domestic and overseas markets, it achieved strong growth in both
shipments and revenue scale. The Group also continued to maintain
close cooperation with top customers in various industries, and
business sectors such as drones, smart homes and game hardware
continued to develop in a steady manner.

PROSPECT AND STRATEGY

Looking forward to the second half of 2023, due to the continued
multiple uncertainties such as inflation and geopolitical risks, major
economies are under insufficient growth momentum and global
economic recession pressure is on the rise. China’s economy, in a
way, is affected by the severe and complicated external environment.
However, given the strong resilience of China’s economy with great
potential and infinite vitality, China’s bright long-term prospects
remain unchanged. In July, the meeting of the Political Bureau of the
CPC Central Committee emphasized that efforts should be made
to stimulate domestic demands, boost confidence and promote a
sustained improvement in economic performance. Also in July, the
National Development and Reform Commission and other departments
issued “Several Measures to Promote Automobile Consumption (€[
MR REH B E T )" in order to further stabilize and expand
automobile consumption, strengthen the construction of supporting
facilities for new energy vehicles, and offer a policy and market
environment conducive to automobile consumption. In the second half
of 2023, China’s new energy vehicle industry is expected to continue
its sound growth momentum. The new energy vehicle penetration rate
is also expected to make continued breakthroughs.

Automobiles and Batteries Business

The Group will adhere to its development strategy, strengthen
the independency and controllability of its core technologies, and
continue to enhance the competitiveness of its products; it will reach
out to the market in depth, and continue to promote the construction
of a multi-brand matrix in line with consumer demands; and with
its comprehensive strength in the field of new energy vehicle, it will
accelerate the step in going abroad to provide consumers around the
world with an excellent experience in new energy vehicles. In August,
the Group rolled off its 5 millionth new energy vehicle, making it the
first automaker in the world to achieve this milestone and injecting
momentum from China’s automobile into the global automobile
industry transformation.
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In the field of new energy passenger vehicles, the Group will continue
to deepen the R&D of core technologies for new energy vehicles
and strengthen the industry-leading strengths. In July, the high-end
intelligent driving assistance system released by the Group, with its
self-research hardware, software and algorithms to build a full stack of
self-research system-level solutions for the entire vehicle, is born for
safety, enables a whole scenario of companionship, assistance and
rescue, and opens up a new chapter of auto-intelligence. In August,
the Group launched “DMQ”, a super hybrid off-road platform, which
makes full use of the Group’s leading advantages in high-performance
chassis, intelligent electric four-wheel drive and off-road-specific
power-train system through the ultimate integration of new hybrid non-
load-bearing frame structure and off-road-specific hybrid structure
to achieve a perfect balance among super power, strong off-road
strength and the least energy consumption while ensuring vehicle
safety.

The Group continues to advance its multi-brand strategy, constantly
refines its product matrix and initiates new product cycles to satisfy the
differentiated needs of consumers. With respect to the “BYD” brand,
“BYD-Seal DM-i”, the first B+ super-hybrid sedan of the “Ocean”
series, is equipped with the “DM-i Super Hybrid” based on the design
concept of oceanic aesthetics, with the first batch of mass-produced
vehicles getting off the assembly line in July. Also in July, the “Denza”
brand officially launched its luxury sports SUV “Denza N7”, aiming to
redefine pure electric luxury with cutting-edge intelligent technologies
and provide an unparalleled travel experience for its users, which
has gained positive recognition and sustained popularity among tens
of thousands of consumers. “Denza N8”, an intelligent and luxurious
SUV designed for all scenarios, was officially launched in August,
further complementing the product matrix of the “Denza” brand.
With respect to the “Yangwang” brand, the new model “Yangwang
U8” continues to unveil its feature highlights, attracting widespread
attention in the market. In addition, the “FANGCHENGBAO” brand was
officially released in August, which is catering to a range of individual
preferences with diversified powerful products featuring “ambition, joy
and fun (B0 ~ 40~ Boby). lts first hardcore SUV, “BAO 5", will be
equipped with “DMOQO”, a super hybrid off-road platform, and “DiSus-P”
to provide owners with unique personalized experience of new energy
vehicles.
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In the field of overseas passenger vehicle business, the Group has
leveraged its leading strengths in the new energy vehicle sector to
accelerate its overseas markets expansion and advance the progress
of going abroad. The Group will continue to work together with its
partners to develop overseas markets and provide global consumers
with differentiated, competitive products and quality services. In July,
in order to further promote globalization, the Group announced that it
would establish a large-scale manufacturing base complex in Brazil to
accelerate the popularization and application of new energy vehicles
in the country.

In the field of battery electric buses, the Group will continue to
empower low-carbon upgrades in global public transportation
systems, provide sustainable, zero-pollution and intelligent public
transportation solutions to different countries and regions, launch
zero-emission, high quality, green and environmentally friendly public
transportation products and services recognized by the market
through efficient and leading-edge innovative technologies, and
promote rapid and healthy development of a low-carbon society.

In terms of urban rail transit, the Group will continue to innovate in the
areas of green and low-carbon, intelligent and smart, integrated and
efficient development, extend the electric vehicle industry chain to the
field of rail transit, focus on promoting low-carbon and environmentally
friendly urban rail transit products, namely “SkyRail” and “SkyShuttle”,
and continuously expand urban applications and international
cooperation to help cities build low-carbon transportation and achieve
sustainable development of green and intelligent transportation.

In terms of rechargeable batteries, the Group will actively promote the
application of the innovative technologies, further expand its customer
base and business coverage, and facilitate sustainable development
of relevant businesses. In terms of photovoltaics business, the Group
will actively grasp the development trend of the industry, concentrate
resources, focus on technology R&D, promote product transformation
and upgrading, to usher in the explosive growth opportunities of the
industry with high-quality products.
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Handset Components and Assembly Business

In the second half of 2023, the Group will closely monitor the
market development trend and continue to capitalize on the market
opportunities by stepping up its efforts in core technology research
and development and innovation, further consolidating its vertically-
integrated strengths and reinforcing its key account strategy. While
maintaining our industry-leading position in the traditional business,
the Group will accelerate the improvement of its forward-looking
deployment in the relevant product lines of emerging businesses, so
as to promote the business development at full speed and drive the
sustained growth of the Group’s business and revenue scale.

In terms of consumer electronics business, the Group will continue
to consolidate its comprehensive competitive advantages and
further increase its market share. The Group will continue to deeply
explore the core business potential of its major overseas customers,
continue to increase the core products share in those customers and
actively expand into new categories of products to further expand
its business scale. At the same time, the Group will strengthen its
strategic cooperation with the Android customers in the mid-to-high-
end products to continue to expand its technological leadership, thus
further consolidating the Group’s market leadership position.

In terms of new intelligent product business, the evolving development
of emerging technologies, such as artificial intelligence and robots,
is driving the diversified development of application scenarios, while
also generating more new market demands. Therefore, the Group’s
forward-looking deployment in the areas of smart homes, game
hardware and drones, etc., will face new development opportunities.
Relying on its industry-leading research and development strength,
global presence and comprehensive vertically-integrated capabilities,
the Group will continue to deepen its cooperation with leading
customers in various segments, fully seize the huge business
opportunities in the market, and expand potential new categories and
markets to capture opportunities in high-incremental markets and
nurture new growth points.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Profit attributable to Owners of the Parent
Company

During the Period, revenue increased by 72.72% as compared with
that of the first half of 2022, mainly attributable to the rapid growth in
the new energy vehicle business. The profit attributable to owners of
the parent company increased by 204.68% as compared to the same
period of previous year, mainly attributable to the increase in the sales
volume of new energy vehicles.

Segmental Information

Comparisons of the Group’s revenue by product categories for the six
months ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 are illustrated as follows:
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Gross Profit and Margin

The Group’s gross profit for the Period increased by approximately
134.36% to approximately RMB47,673 million. The gross profit margin
increased from approximately 13.51% for the first half of 2022 to
approximately 18.33% for the Period. The increased in gross profit
margin was mainly due to the increase in the new energy vehicle
business.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Period, the Group recorded an operating cash inflow of
approximately RMB81,971 million, as compared to an operating cash
inflow of approximately RMB43,185 million in the first half of last year.
The increase in cash inflow of the Group during the Period was mainly
attributable to the increase in cash generated from the sales of goods
and provision of services in operating activities. Total borrowings
as at 30 June 2023, including all bank loans, were approximately
RMB23,910 million, as compared to the total borrowings as at 31
December 2022, including all bank loans and bonds, of approximately
RMB18,517 million. The maturity profile of bank loans spread over a
period of five years, with approximately RMB16,149 million repayable
within one year, approximately RMB7,761 million repayable within the
second to fifth years. The Group holds sufficient cash to meet daily
liquidity management and capital expenditure requirements, and
controls internal operating cash flows.

For the six months ended 30 June 20283, the turnover days of
receivables (including trade receivables, contract assets and
financing receivables) were approximately 46 days as compared
to approximately 68 days for the corresponding period in 2022.
The change was mainly due to the fact that the increase of trade
receivables balance in average was lower than that of sales revenue
over the same period. The inventory turnover days were approximately
72 days for the six months ended 30 June 2023 as compared to
approximately 71 days for the corresponding period in 2022, which
had no significant change.

Capital Structure

The Group’s financial division is responsible for the Group’s financial
risk management which operates according to policies implemented
and approved by senior management. As at 30 June 2023, borrowings
were mainly settled in RMB, while its cash and cash equivalents were
mainly held in RMB and USD. The Group maintained an appropriate
mix of equity and debt to ensure an effective capital structure during
the Period. As at 30 June 2023, all of the Group’s outstanding loans
were RMB loans, of which approximately 44% (31 December 2022:
43%) bore fixed interest rates and the rest bore floating interest rates.

The Group monitors its capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by equity. The Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio
as low as possible. Net debt includes debt capital less monetary
funds. Equity represents equity attributable to owners of the parent
company. Therefore, the Group’s gearing ratio as at 30 June 2023 and
31 December 2022 was -43% and -26%, respectively.
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As at 30 June 2023, there were no land and buildings of the Group
which were pledged as collateral for long-term borrowings (31
December 2022: nil). As at 30 June 2023, cash and bank balances
with book value of RMB151,000 (31 December 2022: RMB880,000)
were subject to restrictions as deposits of bank acceptance bills;
cash and bank balances with book value of RMB197,785,000 (31
December 2022: RMB166,291,000) were subject to restrictions as
guarantee deposits, bid bond and others.

Exposure to Foreign Exchange Risk

Most of the Group’s income and expenditure are settled in RMB
and US dollar. During the Period, the Group did not experience any
significant difficulties in or impacts on its operations or liquidity due
to fluctuations in currency exchange rates. The Directors believe that
the Group has sufficient foreign exchange to meet its own foreign
exchange requirements and will adopt practical measures to prevent
exposure to exchange rate risk.

Employment, Training and Development

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had approximately 631.5 thousand
employees. During the Period, total staff cost accounted for
approximately 15.54% of the Group’s turnover. Employees’
remuneration was determined based on performance, qualifications
and prevailing industry practices, with compensation policies
being reviewed on a regular basis. Bonuses were also awarded to
employees, based on the appraisal on their annual performance.
Incentives were offered to encourage personal motivation.

In addition, the Group also adopted 2022 Employee Share Ownership
Plan (the "Employee Share Ownership Plan”) and Share Option
Incentive Scheme (the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”) of BYD
Semiconductor Company Limited (bt 58 i E &2 % {5 AR A &), which
were approved by the shareholders of the Company at the EGM held
on 27 May 2022 and 16 June 2021, respectively. For further details of
the Employee Share Ownership Plan and the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme, please refer to the sections headed “2022 Employee Share
Ownership Plan” and “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme” in this report.
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2022 EMPLOYEE SHARE OWNERSHIP PLAN

References are made to the announcement dated 22 April 2022 and
the circular dated 5 May 2022 (the “Circular”) of the Company in
relation to, among others, the adoption of Employee Share Ownership
Plan (draft). The adoption was approved by the shareholders of the
Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 27 May 2022.

The Employee Share Ownership Plan is a discretionary employee
share ownership plan of the Company and does not involve the grant
of options to issue new Shares or any other new securities of the
Company. The Employee Share Ownership Plan is beneficial for the
Company to establish and improve the benefit sharing mechanism,
enhance the cohesion of employees and the competitiveness of
the Company, realizing its long-term sustainable development.
Participants include employee representative supervisors, senior
management of the Company, middle level management and core
backbone employees of BYD Group (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company and their respective associates). The
total number of participants of the Employee Share Ownership Plan
shall not exceed 12,000 persons. The Employee Share Ownership
Plan transfers the A shares of the Company repurchased through non-
trading transfer and other methods permitted by laws and regulations.
The transfer price is RMBO per share, and the participants do not
need to make any payments.

The 5,511,024 A shares held by the designated securities repurchase
account of the Company have been transferred to the designated
securities account for the Employee Share Ownership Plan in the form
of non-trading transfer and granted in full on 15 July 2022, and the
closing price of the Company’s A shares was RMB323.00 per share on
the trading day immediately preceding the grant date. The aforesaid
number of shares transferred accounted for approximately 0.189%
of the total issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this
report.

The first lock-up period of the Employee Share Ownership Plan had
expired on 15 July 2023, and 30% of the total number of shares of
the Company maintained under the Employee Share Ownership Plan
were vested, which corresponds to 1,653,307 A shares, representing
0.057% of the total share capital of the Company of 2,911,142,855
shares as at the date of this report. The closing price of the Company’s
A shares was RMB264.41 per share on the trading day immediately
preceding the vesting date.

EEENWE DT

—E__FBETIHRFE
BIRAARRBBRR_E__FMA-+HHAR
ENBHAS-_—_FRARANBRHGRER)
NABHEEFABEFWNE THBRHEIESR) - A2
ARERAAGTR - E-_—FERA-T+HHEETY
FREFRAR B A S LR -

RRETHEBEEAAREN—ARNIEE TG
g WS R BT AR RHEA A A
EFONEE - RXBTIHBEENNARE R
MEENRAZEY  REEITRENNMARR
FhH BRMENEEAUFERR 2HHRER
ARAMBIRRES FREEABUKILEHE
SENTEERAE RULUBHETL  T8EAR
AEENESITHRABREBEA 2HARET
FRGTEIM A AN HIB12,000A » AR B TH K
FPEEBER BB EEARERANITARZER
AEENLTARKRE  ZEERRARKOT,
I 2EHREFTLE -

RAEEERBEFERPAFAENS 511,024k 2 A
ABRBREER —_E-_—_FtA+HEHUNERSZBF
FERABFERAREIRRIERBZLER, 2
HekET BEEETAI—X5B8RQRAKRKE
Wi B A ARK323.000, /I - RAHREBR - £
MBFREHELE AR EBITHARANLF A
0.189% °

RREIFRFAEFE—FEETHER T =F
A+HBE®  BBELFAERRE THFREE
BEARBRELEHENI0%  HENZHNREHE A
1,653,307 X ARK AR = + (H AR A1 BAAR R 4 H HA42 %
AK2,911,142,855% H0.057% » RERSEH AT — R 5
B ARBABRKRENWRESARE264.417T

& o

23



24

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE DT

The term of the Employee Share Ownership Plan shall be 48 months
from the date on which the Employee Share Ownership Plan is
considered and approved at the general meeting and the Company
announces that the last batch of the underlying shares is transferred
to the Employee Share Ownership Plan. Thus, the remaining life of the
Employee Share Ownership Plan is about 37 months as at 30 June
2023.

For details of the Employee Share Ownership Plan and repurchase of
A shares of the Company, please refer to the table below and note 13
to the financial statements in this report, respectively.

List out below are the details of movement of the A shares under the
Employee Share Ownership Plan during the reporting period and up
to the date of this report:
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The participants of the Employee Share Ownership Plan do not
include directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders of
the Company or their respective associates; or any related entities
or service providers of the Company.

All the 5,511,024 repurchased A shares were granted on 15
July 2022. The closing price of the Company’s A shares was
RMB323.00 per share on the trading day immediately preceding
the grant date. The fair value of the granted shares as at the date
of the grant was RMB1,863,773,000.

The A Shares under the Employee Share Ownership Plan will be
unlocked in three tranches:

(@)

The first unlocking period shall be of 12 months
commencing from the date of the last transfer of A Shares
by the Plan and the relevant announcement by the
Company, with the number of shares unlocked being 30%
of the total number of A Shares under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan;

The second unlocking period shall be of 24 months
commencing from the date of the last transfer of A Shares
by the Plan and the relevant announcement by the
Company, with the number of shares unlocked being 30%
of the total number of A Shares under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan; and

The third unlocking period shall be of 36 months
commencing from the date of the last transfer of A Shares
by the Plan and the relevant announcement by the
Company, and the number of shares unlocked being 40%
of the total number of A Shares under the Employee Share
Ownership Plan.

The vesting of the shares granted is subject to the fulfillment
of relevant specific conditions. For the specific conditions for
the vesting of the shares granted, please refer to note 13 to the
financial statements of this report.

No A shares were granted during the reporting period.

No A shares were cancelled or lapsed during the reporting period.

As none of the A shares are vested during the reporting period,
the number of shares that may be transferred in respect of A
shares granted under Employee Share Ownership Plan during the
reporting period is 0.

3)
(4)

(5)
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SUBSIDIARY SHARE OPTION SCHEME

References are made to the announcement dated 11 May 2021 and
the circular dated 31 May 2021 (the “Circular”) of the Company in
relation to, among others, the proposed adoption of the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme. The adoption of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 16 June 2021.

The purpose of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is to, among
others, further establish and improve the incentive mechanism of BYD
Semiconductor, retain and motivate talents, and allow all participants
to focus on the long-term development of BYD Semiconductor and
jointly promote its sustainable development.

There are 36 participants in the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
including directors (excluding independent non-executive directors),
senior management and key personnel (excluding supervisors) of BYD
Semiconductor. The Subsidiary Share Option Scheme is tailored to be
a one-off incentive arrangement for the aforesaid 36 participants only.
None of the 36 incentive participants of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme is a connected person at the Company level. For details of
the identity and positions of the aforesaid participants, please refer to
the Circular.

The number of shares of BYD Semiconductor in respect of which the
share options involved is 33,088,235 shares (representing 7.353%
of the registered share capital of BYD Semiconductor as at the date
of this report), and the cumulative total number of shares of BYD
Semiconductor involved under the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme
and all other schemes of BYD Semiconductor shall not exceed 10%
of the total share capital of BYD Semiconductor in issue as at 16 June
2021, which was the date of approval of the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme by the extraordinary general meeting of the Company. As
at the date of this report, an aggregate of 33,088,235 share options,
representing all the share options which could be granted under the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, were granted to 36 employees
of BYD Semiconductor pursuant to the terms and conditions of the
Subsidiary Share Option Scheme at the exercise price of RMB4.54
per share. As of 30 June 2023, 314,627 share options out of the
33,088,235 share options had been lapsed and cancelled as a result
of the resignation of an employee.
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The validity period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme shall
commence from the grant date of the share options and end on
the date on which all the share options granted to the incentive
participants have been exercised or cancelled, which shall not be
longer than 10 years. The share options granted under the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme shall be exercised in three tranches, and the
corresponding vesting periods shall be 24 months, 36 months and
48 months respectively from the grant date. As at 30 June 2023,
there were 9,826,411 exercisable share options for the first exercise
period of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme, of which 6,218,756
share options had been exercised and the remaining 3,607,655 share
options had been cancelled as they were not exercised during the
exercise period. For further details of the exercise period, performance
appraisal objectives (as conditions of the exercise of the share
options) and further details of the Subsidiary Share Option Scheme,
please refer to the Circular and note 13 to the financial statements in
this report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of 30 June 2023, the share capital of the Company is as follows:
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A Shares AR 1,813,142,855 62.28
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Total By 2,911,142,855 100.00
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the reporting period, there was no significant investment held,
material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures.

CAPITAL COMMITMENT

Please refer to note 15 to the financial statements for details of capital
commitments.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Please refer to note 14 to the financial statements for details of
contingent liabilities.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for details of events
after the balance sheet date.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
(THE “CODE”)

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining and ensuring high standards of corporate governance
practises.

The Board emphasises on maintaining a quality Board with a balance
of expertise, transparency and accountability in order to enhance
shareholders’ value. In the opinion of the Board, the Company has
complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules during the Period, except for the following
deviations:

Code Provision C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual.

Mr. Wang Chuan-fu is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. The Board considers that this structure will not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management. The Board of the Company comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals and meets regularly to discuss issues
affecting operations of the Group. The balance of power and authority
is ensured by the operation of the Board. The Board believes that this
structure is conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling
the Group to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.
The Board has full confidence in Mr. Wang and believes that his
appointment to the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is
beneficial to the business development of the Company.

Code Provision C.1.6

Code provision C.1.6 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors and non-executive directors should attend general meetings.
Some of the non-executive Directors did not attend the annual general
meeting held on 8 June 2023 due to personal affairs at the relevant
time.
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BEEENWE DT

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry
of all Directors, each of the Directors has confirmed compliance with
the required standard set out in the Model Code during the Period.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING
RULES

Mr. Cai Hong-ping has no longer served as an independent non-
executive director of COSCO SHIPPING Development Co., Ltd. (FFi&
HEB RN AR AR) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange and the SZSE, stock code: H shares: 02866; A shares:
601866) with effect from 27 February 2023.

Mr. Zhang Min has no longer served as an independent non-executive
director of Beijing SPC Environment Protection Tech Co., Ltd. (3t 5)F
FIERBHEAAD AR A7) (a company listed on the SZSE, stock code:
002573) with effect from 19 May 2023.

Save as disclosed above, there is no information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules during the
reporting period.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’ S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company for the six
months ended 30 June 2023.

THE BOARD’S DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the Board Diversity Policy, which sets out
the approach to the diversity of Board. The Company recognises the
importance of diversity to corporate governance and an effective
Board. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to
achieve Board diversity, so as to ensure that the Board members
possess appropriate skills, experience and diverse views necessary
for the business of the Company. In determining the Board
composition, the Board and Nomination Committee of the Company
consider a range of diversity elements, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills and knowledge. All appointments of the Board will
be made based on merit and objective criteria while taking into full
account the interest of the Board’s diversity.
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The selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
elements and measurable objectives which will be reviewed regularly.
Such measurable objectives shall include, but be not limited to,
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and/or terms of service. The final
decision will be made according to the strengths of the candidate
and his/her contribution that would bring to the Board. Furthermore,
pursuant to code provision B.1.3 of the Code, the Board should
review the implementation and effectiveness of the issuer’s policy on
board diversity on an annual basis. The Nomination Committee has
performed the above duties in terms of selection of candidates and
review of the implementation and effectiveness of the Company’s
diversity policy during the year. Having considered the business
and development needs of the Company, the Nomination Committee
considers that the current Board is sufficiently diversified in terms of
its skills, experience, knowledge, length of service and independence.

There were female members in the previous sessions of the Board
of the Company. However, as at the date of this report, all members
of the Seventh Session (current session) of the Board are male.
The Director for this session of the Board were nominated by the
shareholders, and have been considered and approved by the
Nomination Committee and the Sixth Session of the Board on 21
August 2020. In addition, they were appointed after consideration and
approval at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 8 September 2020 (collectively, the “Appointment Procedures for
this Session of the Board”). This session of the Board has a term of 3
years with effect from 8 September 2020. During the implementation
of the Appointment Procedures for this Session of the Board, when
appointing the Directors, factors to be taken into consideration by the
Company are not limited to age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills and knowledge, etc., and gender is not
regarded as an important restriction on the candidate selection for the
Board.

To comply with Rule 13.92 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
contemplating to include a female director to join the Board by 31
December 2024 via different channels such as by engaging human
resources agencies to identify potential successors for the Board and
enhance gender diversity in the coming years, if necessary, and will
emphasize to include gender as a factor to be taken into consideration
for achieving the Board diversity.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

A meeting was convened by the Company’s audit committee on
28 August 2023 to review the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group and to discuss auditing, internal control, risk
management and financial reporting matters (including reviewing the
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2023) before
recommending them to the Board for approval.

The audit committee has reviewed the results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2023.

INTERIM DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the distribution of interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2023 (for the six months ended 30 June
2022: Nil).
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of each of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests which he is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) or were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, to be entered into the register referred to therein, or which
were required, pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, to be notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange (for this purpose, the
relevant provisions of the SFO will be interpreted as if they applied to
the supervisors) were as follows:

A shares of RMB1.00 each

EEENWE DT

BEx EERBESTRAERES

MRZBEZ=FXA=1H ARAEF EFKk&
BITBRABRZBRARRRE[AEBER(EERE
BEPIFESTIEE AR LB GRY (785 LB &G
SEXVED D AR MEFTHEEREBEESF N
HEGOIEXVEFET7 R8N MAEME AN T N &AL
RFTHRE S RORR (BRERREBE S R E IR0 BB
XFEBREERSHEENER) - IREEFRAE K
P32/ /AR BN IR EERM - SARBE B
EFLTRANETAREFETESRHNGE
STRIZEME AR B REBB R (B B W
5 R RAEGROINERGERERERNE
2T

BREEARY1.00THAR

Approximate

Approximate percentage of

percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
A shares (%)

shareholding
in total
issued share
capital (%)

Number of BEREMD BT BEREME BT

A shares AREEH RABEN

Name & ARREE BEA B 2L (%) B E D (%)

Wang Chuan-fu TERE 513,623,850 (L) 28.33% 17.64%
(Director and President) (BEEFEH) (Note 1)
(Fi7E1)

Lv Xiang-yang =[5 394,378,222 (L) 21.75% 13.55%
(Director) (FH) (Note 2)
(H1it2)

Xia Zuo-quan Etka 82,635,607 (L) 4.56% 2.84%

(Director) (F=H)

(L) — Long Position

(L) - 47
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Notes:

The 513,623,850 A shares did not include the 3,727,700 A shares
held by Mr. Wang in No.1 Assets Management Plan through E
Fund BYD.

Of the 394,378,222 A shares, 239,228,620 A shares were held by
Mr. Lv in his personal capacity and 155,149,602 A shares were
held by Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. (Bif#%&
TR EB AR AR) (“Youngy Investment”, formerly known as
Guangzhou Youngy Equity Investment Co., Ltd (/N g iE AR &
ABR7AA]). Youngy Investment was in turn held by Mr. Lv and his
spouse as to 89.5% and 10.5% of equity interests, respectively.
Mr. Lv was therefore deemed to be interested in the 155,149,602 A
shares under the SFO.

H shares of RMB1.00 each

HiaE -

1£7%513,623,850 AR 2/ » TR ST HLAB
B EEAEN MG 1TEAEEENEES
793,727 700 A& ARZ RS A7) ©

FE5%394,378,222¢ A% 2 F » 239,228,620/% A
B 2 S A AR & 5458 &% 155,149,602 A
REmpEREEREREFRAR(RERE]
AEARENBEREEEEEARAREE °
BAEREREAEERERBHREE89.5%
F10.5%0 % - ALiREEAEMEEES - 2
S A AR BT 5% 155,149,602 R AR R R B #E
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BRARY1.00THHAR

Approximate

Approximate percentage of

percentage of
shareholding
in total issued
H shares (%)

shareholding
in total
issued share
capital (%)

Number of EREMLD BT FREEE BT
H shares HER B &Y BAAEEEN
Name ®E HERZE B E D (%) BHE 5 (%)
Wang Chuan-fu TER 1,000,000 (L) 0.09% 0.03%
(Director and President) (EEFREH)
Xia Zuo-quan Bikr 500,000 (L) 0.05% 0.02%
(Director) (FF) (Note)
(H15%)
(L) = Long Position (L) - %78
Note: Htat -

Of the 500,000 H shares, 195,000 H shares were held by Mr. Xia as a
beneficial owner and 305,000 H shares were held by Sign Investments
Limited, which was wholly-owned by Mr. Xia.

500,000 Hik 2 H @ EXRENERBEAASHD
5195000 H% - MABSLEEEH B MSign
Investments Limited B3 & 305,000#% Hf% ©
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Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors,
supervisors or chief executives of the Company had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which was required to be (a) recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (b) notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

SHAREHOLDERS WITH NOTIFIABLE INTERESTS

As at 30 June 2023, to the knowledge of the Directors of the Company,
the following persons (other than the Directors, supervisors and chief
executives of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
were required to be entered in the register kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

1. A shares of RMB1.00 each

EEENWE DT

bt EEN R -_ZFA=+H e
ARBESE  BEEHAERTBRABREAAASKET
A EE(EEREHFRBFEEAEXVIE) /AR
- FRERO K EEZTREEERIAR A ()
SR AR RIBERE S R EEHIFE3526FEREED
A R()RIELTAREFHETELR HIZE
STRIZEME AR R RE BB AT

BRAATHAERENRER

K-B-=EAAZ+A  HARTEERM A
FAL(FREARAES BFRESTRAR)
RAR TR RAABR P RS REESREE
BIBXVERE 2R 35 MAMAR 7 RE BB XA HE
SRS E S B E KO B RAR R AFENE
e SR

1 SREEARB1.00THAR

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

total issued in total issued

A shares (%) share capital (%)

Number of EREMD BT EREEE BT

A shares AR HEE BRAAEEEM

Name =1 ABREHE A B 2 L (%) B E D (%)

Youngy Investment (Note) REEEIGE (MT3E) 155,149,602 (L) 8.56% 5.33%
(L) = Long Position (L) -4 &

Note: B -

Youngy Investment is owned by Mr. Lv Xiang-yang, a non-executive
Director of the Company, as to 89.5%. Mr. Lv is therefore deemed to be
interested in the 155,149,602 A shares held by Youngy Investment under
the SFO.

BMERERAQNRFENTEEE MBI EREF89.5%E
o FHL - BEBEBEHFRBEKD - LAWK AR
AR B #9155,149, 602 RARE h HE B #E %5 -
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2. H shares of RMB1.00 each 2. SREEAR¥1.00THHER
Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding
shareholding in total
in total issued issued share
H shares (%) capital (%)
Number of BREMEBRT BRREMGERT
H shares HR &1 RABEH

Name % HE#E BAE D (%) BLAE D (%)

Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Inc.(#7:£1) 98,603,142 (L) 8.98% 3.39%

Berkshire Hathaway Energy (Note 1) Berkshire Hathaway Energy(#/i#1) 98,603,142 (L) 8.98% 3.39%

Western Capital Group LLC (Note 1)~ Western Capital Group LLC(##i#1) 98,603,142 (L) 8.98% 3.39%

BlackRock, Inc. (Note 2) BlackRock, Inc.(f/:#2) 56,981,853 (L) 5.19% 1.96%

351,000 (S) 0.03% 0.01%

(L) = Long Position (L) -4 &

Notes: Btst -

1. According to the disclosure of interests notice filed on 23 June 1. BER-ZZ_=FAZF+=ZHRXH
2023, each of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. and Berkshire Hathaway I 5 25 i M Berkshire Hathaway Inc. &
Energy Company (formerly known as MidAmerican Energy Berkshire Hathaway Energy Company(R#
Holdings Company) is deemed to be interested in 98,603,142 #MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company)
H Shares (L) through 98,603,142 H Shares directly held by its AREEABBRERZEENARREERER
indirectly controlled corporation and wholly-owned corporation, A]Western Capital Group LLCFrEZ A&
Western Capital Group LLC, respectively. 98,603,142[%HA% + 798,603, 142f& HA% (L) #

HEER -
2. The interests of BlackRock, Inc. were held through its various 2. BlackRock, Inc.f) s /b i il 2 & 12 6l A 7

controlled corporations, and of which 306,500 long positions were
cash settled unlisted derivatives, and 348,500 short positions were
cash settled unlisted derivatives.

The total issued share capital of the Company as at 30 June 2023 was
RMB2,911,142,855, divided into 1,813,142,855 A shares of RMB1.00
each and 1,098,000,000 H shares of RMB1.00 each, all fully paid up.

£ HA306,5000 78 ARG EEIEETITE
TE - X&3485000 %8 AIRESHEHEIELMITAE
TH-

RZEBEZ=FA=1+H8 ARABETRAEE
ABARYE2911,142,85550 © 73 /41,813,142,855 &
fE T E A R #1.0070 B AR & 1,098,000,0000% & i%
HAEARE1.00TTHHE - 25 ABWER -
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EHEERER

— =

30 June 2023

=FNA=+H

RMB'000 AR#TIT

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E=-= —EF--
ANA=t+H +=-—A=+—8H
Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
k=3 (REET) (EFEED
Assets BE
Current assets TENE E
Monetary funds BEEe 79,811,263 51,471,263
Financial assets held for trading REGUEEREE 13,064,442 20,626,930
Trade receivables JEUER X 9 49,058,860 38,828,494
Receivables financing JEU B R E 7,682,528 12,894,284
Prepayments SEANE ] 4,279,607 8,223,567
Other receivables b MR 2,011,167 1,910,009
Inventories wE 86,900,482 79,107,199
Contract assets aREE 5,081,675 13,552,998
Long-term receivables due within one year —F N E| BRI & HR R U5k 3,375,928 1,052,562
Other current assets HEM R EE 14,741,182 13,136,201
Total current assets mBEESG 266,007,134 240,803,507
Non-current assets SERBEE
Long-term receivables REIE W R 4,985,692 1,118,637
Long-term equity investments REMRERE 16,473,886 15,485,402
Other equity instrument investments HibigEm TERE 5,197,914 4,418,584
Other non-current financial assets HinIEnsemEaE 2,429,094 2,147,140
Investment properties "EMEE 83,757 85,005
Fixed assets BEE&E 181,104,955 131,880,369
Construction in progress FEETRE 51,589,600 44,621,935
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 3,488,015 3,137,327
Intangible assets \REE 30,614,510 23,223,497
Development expenditures FE s 1,592,627 1,683,000
Goodwill [EES 65,914 65,914
Long-term deferred expenditures RHEF#EBR 796,848 458,108
Deferred tax assets RIEFTIS B B 5,206,915 3,686,905
Other non-current assets HEiIEREEE 21,496,546 21,045,316
Total non-current assets ERBEERT 325,126,273 253,057,139
Total assets BERR 591,133,407 493,860,646

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

18 P B 765 S 3R P R A AN B T SR O AL AE >
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EHEERER

30 June 2023
—E-=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
=== —F-—
ANA=t+H +=-—A=+—8H
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
k=3 (REET) (EFEED
Liabilities =V
Current liabilities REEE
Short-term borrowings EHAE 9,835,141 5,153,098
Financial liabilities held for trading RS EREE 140,697 54,605
Bills payables ANES 10 3,603,387 3,328,419
Trade payables JETER SR 11 165,489,829 140,437,310
Contract liabilities ERAE 35,084,866 35,516,571
Employee benefits payables A< B T 357 B 14,584,427 12,037,011
Tax payables ERBE 4,452,682 4,326,394
Other payables HAth FET 3R 159,018,267 122,123,841
Provision TEETBE 2,040,652 1,287,452
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FREEMERB AR 7,225,482 6,464,828
Other current liabilities EMmsaE 2,214,171 2,615,032
Total current liabilities mEBEEE 403,689,601 333,344,561
Non-current liabilities SERBIAE
Long-term borrowings REMER 7,760,844 7,593,596
Bond payables FEfES - -
Lease liabilities HEBE 2,852,484 2,617,274
Deferred tax liabilities REEFSH AR 2,612,819 2,018,530
Other non-current liabilities HEiIEREEE 43,816,503 26,896,848
Total non-current liabilities FRBBESR 57,042,650 39,126,248
Total liabilities aEast 460,732,251 372,470,809

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements
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EHEERER

— =

30 June 2023

=FNA=+H

RMB'000 AR#TIT

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E == —E--
AA=+H +ZA=+—H
Note (Unaudited) (Audited)
Mtat (REFE) Cc&ay)
Shareholders’ equity RRER
Shareholders’ equity IR
Share capital (&N 12 2,911,143 2,911,143
Capital reserve BERNTE 62,265,717 61,705,893
Less: Treasury shares B ETERR 1,809,920 1,809,920
Other comprehensive income HEMARE e 870,198 428,332
Special reserve HIEEHE 17,011 12,078
Surplus reserve BHNTE 6,838,541 6,838,541
Undistributed profit o BEFE 48,572,852 40,943,232
Total shareholders’ equity attributable to BEREARIRRERAR
the parent company 119,665,542 111,029,299
Non-controlling interests Ve R S 10,735,614 10,360,538
Total shareholders’ equity iR i & 5t 130,401,156 121,389,837
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEFMRRER LA 591,133,407 493,860,646

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

The financial statement was signed by the following persons:

Legal representative: Chief Financial Officer:
Wang Chuan-fu Zhou Ya-lin
VEEMFA - FEEFIERBEA -
FEE JEEE I

A BATALEE

18 P B 75 S 2% P R AR AN R A5 SRR 9 LA RE 20

Head of Accounting Department:

Liu Hui
SEHIEEEA -
2=
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BYD Company Limited
LEmBRBARAE

Consolidated Income Statement

RN

Six months ended 30 June 2023

BHE-_Z-=FXA=+HIXERHH

RMB'000 AR®TIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
e BHE
—E-=F —T-_F
AA=tHE KRBE=tHIE
7B A HIE 7~ 8 A EfE
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Kz (RE&EE) (CREsE:T)
L Operating revenue — - EERA 5 260,124,143 150,607,252
Less: Operating costs B BERAK 5 212,451,556 130,265,478
Tax and surcharge Fis &Mt 4,648,323 2,380,322
Selling expenses HEEHR 10,838,054 4,722,663
Administrative expenses EREH 6,818,637 3,670,510
Research and development expenses & A 13,834,648 5,424,256
Finance expenses BBER (1,102,954) (898,445)
Including: Interest expenses He: FISBR 977,473 652,684
Interest income FEWA 1,168,146 844,379
Add: Other income me o Eflas 1,857,641 649,549
Investment gain/(loss) BB (BX) 590,770 (369,664)
Including: Investment gains/(losses) Hep: HBECENGE0E
in associates and MBI (1BX)
joint ventures 597,938 (404,634)
Loss on derecognition of VABEBRBK AN ET 2 Y
financial assets measured CREERILE
at amortised cost RIEX = (11,267)
Gains/(losses) from changes DNRABEEZHNE(BX)
in fair value 86,896 (16,041)
Impairment losses on credit ERRERERX (610,523) (228,157)
Impairment losses on asset BEMERE (905,154) (431,992)
Gains/(losses) from disposal of assets BEREWR (B%) 75,774 (24,047)
Il.  Operating profit = EERNE 13,731,283 4,622,116
Add: Non-operating income o EFEIMA 305,965 211,760
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEIN T 637,328 192,395
. Total profit = Fpam 13,399,920 4,641,481
Less: Income tax expenses B TS E A 6 1,960,201 708,345
IV.  Net profit . R 11,439,719 3,933,136

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements
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ZE_=FRHRE

Consolidated Income Statement

AN 3
& BFF B &k
Six months ended 30 June 2023
HE-ZE-_=FA=1+8I1/~EA =M
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
e BHE
—EC=F o F
AB=1+HIE ASB=1HIE
18 A H R NGB
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Mzt (RE&&ETT) (REEEST)
V.  Classified by continuity of operation T REEBEMSE
Net profit from continuing operations HECEEFIE 11,439,719 3,933,136
VI. Classified by ownership A RFEREREIE
Net profit attributable to shareholders of FENERAMAEENFHE
the parent company 10,954,145 3,595,279
Non-controlling interests DHRRER 485,574 337,857
VIl. Earnings per share (RMB/share) £ SRkEZRR
Basic earnings per share EARGREE 8 3.77 1.24
Diluted earnings per share wRGRKE 8 3.77 1.24

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

Consolidated Income Statement

RN

Six months ended 30 June 2023
HE-ZE-_=FA=1+8I1/<EF =M
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
e BHE
—EC=F o F
AB=1+HIE ASB=1HIE
18 A H R NGB
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Mzt (RE&&ETT) (RIEEST)
VIIl. Other comprehensive income/(loss) N Himaks (BB 450,683 (27,754)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that T EDBEERNEMES
cannot be reclassified to profit or loss Wi/ (&18)
Changes in fair value of other equity HipERTAREARBES
instrument investments 496,027 94,158
Income tax impact FIESTih -2 (122,515) (17,589)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) BESEEERNEMZARE
that will be reclassified to profit (B#8)
or loss
Exchange difference on foreign currency INEREITE AT
translation 29,382 (91,727)
Changes in fair value of receivables JEURIRRVE AR BEE
financing 41,092 (10,850)
Provision for credit impairment of EW R IERE Z AR EER
receivables financing (2,120) 1,698
Other comprehensive income/(loss) BEROHREME MR W
attributable to non-controlling interests, (BB BT F5E
net of tax 8,817 (3,444)
IX. Total comprehensive income - FEWSARE 11,890,402 3,905,382
Among which: Hrp
Total comprehensive income BEREARRRNGE
attributable to shareholders of W 458
the parent company 11,396,011 3,570,969
Total comprehensive income EBNVEBRRNGE a5
attributable to non-controlling
interests 494,391 334,413

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements

18 P B 765 S 3% PI R A AN B TS S R O ALK RF 2
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ZE_=FRHRE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHBEERER

Six months ended 30 June 2023
HE-ZE-_=FA=1+8I1/~EA =M
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the

six months six months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2023 2022

S HE
—EC-=F —EooF

AA=t+HIE S~AZ=tHL

78 A HiE SN E A EAE

Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hist (RE&ETT) (REEES)

1. Cash flows from operating activities: - RETHEENRERE:

Cash received from sales of goods and HEMM - RERBKENR 2

provision of services 251,313,806 152,837,481
Tax rebates received WEIMH B R E 7,798,280 4,698,994
Cash received from other activities WE B REEEHABRRE

relating to operations 11,038,425 2,756,183
Sub-total of cash inflows from operating KEFEBREMANGT

activities 270,150,511 160,292,658
Cash paid for goods and services BEER  BEXREZANES 125,042,780 86,459,497
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees TRGBIURARIZIHNRE 37,357,054 21,597,732
Cash paid for various types of taxes XM EEHRE 14,055,372 5,947,505
Cash paid for other activities relating to TREMELE T EENTR S

operations 11,724,128 3,102,757
Sub-total of cash outflows from operating REFEBRS R DET

activities 188,179,334 117,107,491
Net cash flow from operating activities KEEHEENREREFE 81,971,177 43,185,167

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial B EREM i ARFERERNAR LD
statements
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LEmBRBARAE

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHBEERER

Six months ended 30 June 2023
HE-ZE-_=FA=1+8I1/<EF =M
RMB'000 AREFIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
EES HE
—E-Z=F —EoCF
AA=t+HIE S~AZ=tHL
~ME A SN E A EAE
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hiat (REEELT) (REEE)
. Cash flows from investing activities: REZHEENRERE ©
Cash received from disposal of WEEEKEIRNERS
investments - 13,779
Cash received from disposals of BREABAHEARMKINERS
joint ventures or associates 72,968 -
Cash received from gains in investment RERENEREINERS 154,379 45,062
Net cash received from disposals of BREF AR REMEFEMWEE
subsidiaries and other operating entities Be T8 73,840 -
Net cash received from disposals of fixed BRERATEE BFEEENEM
assets, intangible assets and other REEEWERIR G FH
long-term assets 241,715 182,747
Cash received from other activities WEEMEREEFSAENERE
relating to investments 18,467,236 7,602,965
Sub-total of cash inflows from investing BEFHHRSMANG
activities 19,010,138 7,844,553
Cash paid for purchase and construction HRETEE EBREENEM
of fixed assets, intangible assets and REAEELANEE
other long-term assets 65,936,866 36,128,310
Cash paid for investments KES MBS 960,274 2.463,808
Cash paid for other activities relating to TRHEMEREESHE@ANES
investments 10,649,269 12,060,000
Sub-total of cash outflows from investing BEEERS T/
activities 77,546,409 50,652,118
Net cash flows used in investing activities BREZHFRANRSREFHE (58,536,271) (42,807,565)
lll. Cash flows from financing activities: EETHELENRERE .
Cash received from capital injection RUEE W EIE & = 276,625
Cash received from borrowings NEERKENERS 17,114,038 19,435,013
Cash received relating to other financing WEMEMEEZ ZHEEOERE
activities 28,233 -

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
EHBEERER

Six months ended 30 June 2023
BE-_ZT-=FA=1+HI/NEAHH

RMB'000 AR#TIT

For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
EES HE
—E-=F B F
AA=t+HIE S~AZ=tHL
~ME A SN E A EAE
Note (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Hist (K& (REEE)
Sub-total of cash inflows from financing SEFRPREMANGT
activities 17,142,271 19,711,638
Cash paid for repayment of debts BREBIHHRE 11,667,955 23,418,888
Cash payments for distribution of DEARF - FUESER RSN
dividends, profits or interest expenses rEE 853,406 736,927
Cash paid relating to other financing SHHEMRESEHFENES
activities 570,698 4,558,149
Sub-total of cash outflows from financing EBEHRSMI/NET
activities 13,092,059 28,713,964
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing LEEHEL/(FRNRSE
activities MEFE 4,050,212 (9,002,326)
IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 1 - EZSHUBRERBESZEY
on cash and cash equivalents o2 560,785 141,750
V. Netincrease/(decrease) in cash and T BeRBELSEWFEMS
cash equivalents (W) 58 28,045,903 (8,482,974)
Add: balance of cash and cash equivalents m: BPRe kRS EMSRE
at the beginning of the period 51,182,457 49,819,860
VI. Balance of cash and cash equivalents - HFRRERBESEENHE
at the end of the period 79,228,360 41,336,886

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements
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BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 7 ¥R 3= Mt &

30 June 2023

— = —

=

—FNA=1H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

BYD Company Limited (the “Company”) is a joint stock limited
company registered in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The Company’s H shares have been listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 31 July 2002. The
registered office of the Company is located at Yan An Road,
Kuichong, Dapeng District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,
the PRC.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the “Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises- Basic
Standard” issued by the Ministry of Finance and the specific
accounting standards, application guidelines, interpretations
and other relevant regulations issued and revised thereafter
(collectively known as the “ASBE”).

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis. As at 30 June 2023, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB137,682,467,000. In view of such circumstances, the
management of the Company has given consideration to the
future liquidity and financial resources available to the Group,
which mainly include the net cash flows generated from the
Group’s operating activities and sufficient financial credit
facilities, in assessing whether the Group will have sufficient
financial resources to continue as a going concern, and will
not have any going concern issue as a result of the shortage of
working capital. Therefore, the management of the Company
is of the opinion that it is appropriate to prepare the financial
statements on a going concern basis.

In the preparation of the financial statements, all items are
recorded by using historical cost as the basis of measurement
except for some financial instruments. Impairment provision
is made according to relevant regulation if the assets are
impaired.
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Notes to Financial Statements

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

Changes in accounting policies
Recognition of deferred income tax relating to the leases

The interpretation No. 16 of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises issued in November 2022 provides that the
exemption from the requirement to initially recognize deferred
income tax does not apply to a single transaction that is not a
business combination, that affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable income (or deductible tax losses) at the time of the
transaction, and that results in the creation of an equivalent
amount of taxable temporary differences and deductible
temporary differences as a result of the initial recognition of
an asset or liability. The Group has applied the provision of
the interpretation No.16 since 1 January 2022 that deferred
income tax assets and liabilities will be recognized for liabilities
and right-of-use assets in relation to a single transaction,
respectively, at the beginning of the first accounting period
that adopts the interpretation No.16, and the net deferred
income tax assets and liabilities after offsetting will be equal to
the amounts previously recognized according to net amounts.
The consolidated balance sheet presented according to the
net amounts after offsetting will not be affected.

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

B BERNE A RE

B BERE
HTHE R TS B e a7

—E_—F - ARMHR RS ERIRE
BEIHIRTE HRTEREREGH 5
BERRATEEH N B TR EERAT AT
SR (KATEHEE) - BRERNEEMN
BEESRELSHEANERIEZZMATE
HERUEZRNERRS - TEARRISG
BREEMEHARTE - AEER_T_—
F-A—HRITHBIMZIARE - 81
EBRRITHEE1RNM SRR R F
B - HEEX S P ROEERBEME
REEEDNERREMSHEEMEE
B EEMBETRRFEMAREILFHE
RN EES - BRRERERFEIIRH
EHEERBRERLETE -

49



50

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements
Bt 7 ¥R 3= Mt &

30 June 2023

— = —

=

—FNA=1H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

3.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (CONTINUED)

Changes in accounting estimates
Changes in accounting estimates and their reasons

As the update and iteration of new energy vehicle technologies
continue to accelerate, the requirements of power batteries on
product structure and performance continue to update. The
original power battery production equipment under some of
the technology platforms is not able to meet the requirements
for the production of new products, therefore, its useful life
is below the original depreciation life. To reflect the financial
condition and operating results of the Company in a more
objective and accurate way, the Company proposed to change
the long-term asset depreciation and amortization lives of the
above power batteries to 3 years based on the current use
condition and useful lives of its fixed assets.

The changes in accounting estimates, with effect from 1
January 2023, have been approved at the 31st meeting of
the Seventh Session of the Board and the 14th meeting of the
Seventh Session of the Supervisory Committee on 28 March
2023.

Effects of accounting estimates on financial data

The changes in accounting estimates were accounted for
based on the prospective application method and did not have
any material effect on the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the six months ended 2023.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SEGMENT REPORTING
Operating segment

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services. With
the growth of the electric vehicle business, the increase
in correlation between the main business of rechargeable
batteries and the electric vehicle business, the management
consolidated the rechargeable batteries and photovoltaic
segment with the automobile, automobile-related products
and other products segment. The Group currently has two
reportable segments as follows:

a) the mobile handset components, assembly service and
other products segment comprises the manufacture
and sale of mobile handset components such as
housings and electronic components and the provision
of assembly services;

b) the automobiles and related products and other
products segment comprises the manufacture and sale
of automobiles and auto-related molds and components
and automobile leasing and after sales services,
automobile power batteries, energy storage products,
consumer batteries and photovoltaic products, rail
transport and its related business.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit. The adjusted profit before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that gains
or losses arising from changes in fair value, finance costs
(excluding interest expenses on lease liabilities and exchange
gains or losses), non-operating income, other income, losses
on disposal of assets, non-operating expenses, investment
income (excluding investment income from associates and joint
ventures), income from sales of properties, the corresponding
costs and tax, as well as administrative expenses incurred by
the Company as the Group’s headquarter are excluded from
such measurement.

Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, goodwill, financial
assets held for trading, other equity instrument investments,
other non-current financial assets, investment properties and
assets occupied by the Company as the Group’s headquarter
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
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30 June 2023
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4.

SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Operating segment (continued)

Segment liabilities exclude deferred tax liabilities, tax payable,
other current liabilities, other non-current liabilities, short-term
borrowings, long-term borrowings, bonds payable, interest
payable and dividends payable in other payables, financial

=Y
D
b

H& (&)
parde )

A
ok ]mk

ﬂﬂﬁ?ﬁ»

b

&~ REMER

o) Lfﬁ ) S0 FE A BRI

HEETEREEEMSHEE -
E’mt@j L&

FE A

Efﬂ#ﬁ@)%t\ Bt
CERES - EfEMSRE
R rBERM

liabilities held for trading and liabilities assumed by the RAAREREBBIMBENEE  REARL
Company as the Group’s headquarter as these liabilities are RELBEYHRAEEG—EE o
managed on a group basis.
Transfer pricing in operating segments is determined with BEHEENEREE - RRBELE DA
reference to the agreed price among operating segments. R BREHIE
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly andrelated  Adjustments
serviceand  products and and
other products  other products eliminations Total
FHHH RE -
For the six months ended 30 June 2023 HE-Z--EXA=1H B%R AERBER
(Unaudited) 1518 A B (R &) HitER REMER HEAES &it
Revenue from external trading HIZHHA 51,090,165 208,823,603 210,375 260,124,143
Revenue from inter-segment trading AHERHHA 5,248,582 2,924,979 (8,173,561) =
Total AEf 56,338,747 211,748,582 (7,963,186) 260,124,143
Investment loss/(income) in joint ventures and HAENBEMERNRE
associates BR/ (W55) - -507,938 = -597,938
Depreciation and amortization eSS 1,561,892 16,563,268 = 18,125,160
Total profit/(losses) filE/ (BB) e 1,425,768 12,355,046 (380,894) 13,399,920
Income tax expense MERER 178,588 1,781,613 = 1,960,201
Capital expenditure ERiT 2,078,439 81,517,697 = 83,596,136
As of 30 June 2023 HE-Z-=£XA=tH
(Unaudited) (REE)
Total assets EESE 62,118,380 518,685,011 10,330,016 591,133,407
Total liabilities ElEEe 23,443,124 399,274,267 38,014,860 460,732,251
Other disclosures H#E
Long-term equity investments in joint ventures HEENBetENRIRERE
and associates - 16,473,886 - 16,473,886
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4. HDEHEGE
Operating segment (continued) &I (E)

Mobile handset
components, Automobiles

assembly and related Adjustments
service and products and and
other products  other products eliminations Total
FHREH - e

For the six months ended 30 June 2022 HE-Z--"£XA=1H BEk  AERBER
(Unaudited) EAME R BE CRES:) EftEm REMER AENEH ait
Revenue from external trading HIZHHWA 41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Revenue from inter-segment trading AHEZHRA 2,915,152 1,865,967 (4,781,119) -
Total At 43984802 111,133.385 (4510935 150,607,252
Investment loss in joint ventures and associates HEEMBRAENRERK - 404,634 - 404,634
Depreciation and amortization TEMBH 1,554,151 7,601,059 - 9,155,210
Total profit/(losses) ME/ (BB e 674,802 3,856,265 110,414 4,641,481
Income tax expense FEHER 56,114 569,730 82,501 708,345
Capital expenditure BRI 2,275,406 37,751,788 - 40,027,194
As of 31 December 2022 BE-B--E+ZA=T-H
(Audited) (&&:)
Total assets EEEE 54,625,520 419,691,469 19,543,657 493,860,646
Total liabilities AL 22,020,698 326,023,534 24,426,577 372,470,809
Other disclosures EHRE
Long-term equity investments in joint ventures and HAENBL P ENRIRERE

associates - 15,485,402 - 15,485,402
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4. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED)

Other information [iR 3N
Geographical information | {55
Operating revenue EEIA
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
Bz qHZE
—E—-= —E- 4
ANA=+HLE NAZ=ZTHIE
7B A HA R 7N fE A HAR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFEF) CREgERD
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and PE(BIESRAHE)
Taiwan) 195,714,569 117,224,189
Overseas B 64,409,574 33,383,063
260,124,143 150,607,252

Revenue from external transactions is attributed to the location

of customers.

IR ZWABRBREFPMERE -

Total non-current assets EMBNE EBTE
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—=== —F- =
ANB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RECHFS) (k& 2=51)
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and FE(BIESERAHE)
Taiwan) 303,415,350 238,541,045
Overseas AN 3,825,394 3,078,914
307,240,744 241,619,959

Non-current assets exclude goodwill, other equity instrument

FRBEERBRNZEEMEES - T8

investments, other non-current financial assets, long-term
receivables and deferred tax assets attributed to the region
where the assets are located.

HE - HiEETARE  HtERDam
BE  REBKSKANRELEMEHEE -
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SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 4. HDEHEGE
Other information (continued) Hibs 8 (18
Information about major custormers FTEEXFEE
For the six months ended 30 June 2023, operating revenue HEZZTZ=FA=TAH1EEAHMAE -
of RMB27,246,971,000 (for the six months ended 30 June BEWAARE27 246971 F L(BE=-ZE
2022: RMB17,888,497,000) was derived from sales to a single ZZFERAZ=THLERNEASE: ARE
customer. 17,888,497 F ) AH K —BEAZF KA -
OPERATING REVENUE AND COST 5. HEEIWARRKRK
For the six months ended For the six months ended
30 June 2023 30 June 2022
HZ-B-=£XA=tHL HE-Z-_-§xA=tHI
7~ 8 A R ~E A R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REET) (REE&E)
REVENUE COST REVENUE COST
KA BA WA AR
Revenue from principal operations TEEBMA 254,744,317 208,184,122 146,774,501 127,333,625
Other operating revenue HinZEBBA 5,379,826 4,267,434 3,832,751 2,931,853
260,124,143 212,451,556 150,607,252 130,265,478
Operating Revenue is as follows: EEWATIRAT
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
Bz HZE
—E-=F —F-—
ANA=tTHIE ANA=t+HIE
ANME A B 7 A A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFE) (REEZEE
Sale of goods and construction services $H 6 P on S B IE AR TS 258,701,798 150,395,902
Rendering of services RERS 1,266,532 211,350
Rental income HEWA 155,813 -
260,124,143 150,607,252
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5. OPERATING REVENUE AND COST (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as

R AR A ()

BEFZHAGREENZEXERADBIFRN

follows: N
Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related
service products,
and other and other
products products Others Total
FHBH - RE
January to June 2023 (Unaudited) ZBRIZE-ERA(REED f%R RERBER
Reportable segments RESD At ER REMER Hif fit
Principal place of operation TELEHE
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) FE(BERRAE) 13,659,142 181,706,895 209,894 195,575,931
Overseas 54 37,403,329 26,989,070 - 64,392,399
51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
Major product types TEEREY
Sale of goods and construction services HEBRREERE 51,040,237 207,451,667 209,804 258,701,798
Rendering of services RIERS 22,234 1,244,298 = 1,266,532
51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
Timing of revenue recognition WA B AR
At apoint in time EE-BHERMA 51,053,339 207,560,428 209,804 258,823,661
Over time i S E LT ON 9,132 1,135,537 = 1,144,669
51,062,471 208,695,965 209,894 259,968,330
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OPERATING REVENUE AND COST (CONTINUED)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers is as

follows (continued):

B % ¥R AR M R
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R AR A ()

BEFZHAGREENZEXERADBIFRN
T -

Mobile
handset
components, Automobiles
assembly and related
service products,
and other and other
products products Others Total
FHEH - e
January to June 2022 (Unaudited) - CE-ERRREEH) BER  TEREER
Reportable segments HENE EtER REMER Eth At
Principal place of operation I2EEE
PRC (including Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan) HE(REERAME) 15,062,768 101,891,237 270,184 117,204,189
Overseas 54 26,006,882 7,376,181 - 33,383,063
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Major product types TEEREN
Sale of goods and construction services HEBRREERE 41,003,536 109,122,959 269,407 150,395,902
Rendering of services RIERS 66,114 144,459 777 211,350
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
Timing of revenue recognition WA BRRE A
At a point in time ER-BHRRMA 4100353 108,532,875 268,788 149,805,199
Qver time e S E G TON 66,114 734,543 139 802,053
41,069,650 109,267,418 270,184 150,607,252
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5.

OPERATING REVENUE AND COST (CONTINUED)
Sales of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied when delivering
goods to customers. Some contract customers are entitled
to rebates, which require estimation of variable consideration
and consideration of constraint on the amount of variable
consideration. The settlement of the contract price is subject to
the arrangement in the contract.

Construction services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and are billed based on construction progress.
The customers usually retain a certain percentage of the
retention money, which is usually paid after the expiration of
the warranty period.

Rendering of services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and the settlement of the contract price is subject
to the agreement in the contract.

5.

R AR A ()

HEBM

AEPXNEmKRETENER - S0 ER
EPEREXEMN  AUFRMEFTAIZELHE
YERAZHESEORS - SREREE
MAB RAE B%E ©

2R
ERUBBOBENETEOEY SRS
HAEMITREESN - AYEPRE &
HAIMERS  HRLBEETRBHES
fif o

REHIR%
ERURSNEENBITEOEY  ARIE

REEABRKERE -

6. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

6 FMEBHEA

For the For the

six months six months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2023 2022

BZE H=

—E_-= —EF--

ANA=t+HIE NAZtHIE

7B A HA R 7~ & A HAf

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RE&&ESH) (REEEED

Current income tax expenses EHFSHER 3,008,479 1,149,820
Deferred income tax expenses RIEFMBHER (1,048,278) (441,475)
1,960,201 708,345
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INCOME TAX EXPENSES (CONTINUED) 6 FISBEARGE
The relationship between income tax and total profit is as FrisiEREFNEAENBEERIIRET ¢
follows:
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
Bz HZE
—E_-= —E-F
AA=+HIE RNA=+AHL
ANE A EE 7~ 1E A A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REFE) CREgERD
Total profit A EsRzE 13,399,920 4,641,481
Income tax at the statutory tax rate (Note 1) BEAEREFEOMESHGEY) 3,349,980 1,160,370
Effect of different tax rates applicable to ReEFRNFEATRARENTE
certain subsidiaries (1,024,471) (422,542)
Profit or loss attributable to joint ventures and ~ BREBR A& & EMEE D EMNIBR
associates (146,874) 24,056
Non-deductible expenses THENNE A 189,501 (34,461)
Tax losses and temporary differences not RERNTBEEREREEZE
recognised 1,545,087 988,442
Deductible tax losses utilised from TR AR E el EE
previous years (709,162) (397,667)
Effect of changes in tax rate on the balance TR G W VIR IE RS B shEE
of deferred income tax at the beginning of KR 2
the period 49,946 2,598
Super-deduction of research and (RS- Yl
development expenses (1,293,806) (612,451)
Income tax charge at the Group’s effective RASEEBEERREAENMED
tax rate & A 1,960,201 708,345

Note 1: The Group’s income tax has been provided at the statutory
rate based on the estimated taxable profits arising in the

PRC.

i

RE B TS BRI T B ARS8 b 5t R AT
PSR ROEEREAHE -
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7. DIVIDENDS 7- RE
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZE qHE
—E-=F —E_—
ANA=t+HILE NA=THIE
7B A HA R 7~ & A HAf
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RASEET) CREgEED
Final dividend declared — RMB1.142 EEIRAH - FRERR 3,324,525 305,670
(2022: RMBO0.105) per ordinary share AR#A.1427T
(ZZE=_—%F: AR¥0.1057)
8. EARNINGS PER SHARE 8- BRWKE
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BZE HE
—E-=F T
ANA=t+HLE NA=Z+HIE
< E A HA R 7~ f& A HAf
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE) CREEERD)
Basic earnings per share ARG
Continuing operations BEKE 3.77 1.24
Diluted earnings per share wiE gk =
Continuing operations HELE 3.77 1.24
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EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net
profit for the Period attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company, less distribution to holders of other equity
instruments by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding. The number of newly issued ordinary
shares shall be calculated and determined from the date of
consideration receivable (generally the date of share issuance)
according to the specific terms of the issuance contract.

The numerator of diluted earnings per share is determined
based on the net profit for the Period attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company after adjusting for (1) interest on
dilutive potential ordinary shares recognized as an expense
for the Period, (2) gains or expenses that will be incurred upon
conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares and (3) the
income tax effects of the above adjustments.

The denominator of diluted earnings per share is equal to the
sum of (1) the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue of the parent company in basic earnings per share and (2)
increase in the weighted average number of ordinary shares
assuming conversion of dilutive potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

In calculating the weighted average number of ordinary shares
increased upon conversion of dilutive potential ordinary
shares into ordinary shares in issue, the dilutive potential
ordinary shares issued in previous periods are assumed to be
converted at the beginning of the Period; the dilutive potential
ordinary shares issued in the Period are assumed to be
converted on the issue date.

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

BR WS (&)

EAGRKSEREBR AR F L BRRRE
EHFERNE O REHHEMERTAFSEEN
7BC > BRABITIESN Y B B A RO IR 1 2R
FHE - MBETEAREE  REETERN
BRI RREEZR(—RARREET
BT EREE ©

HEERKAND FNEER AR R Bk
PR EBENE - AR TURRRZEE
MEHEERRERNBEEEEEBERN
ME QBEMEEBELE S BRERESELN
Wk BA - A R3) L FEREEE ST

By 488
=

mEERKEN D EERTIMEZM (1)
EXRGRWaETERRCEHTERRNINE
FHE RQBERBEEE L BRERA
BTG AN e B R AR E hnRE 9 8K

EFERELECET BRERACDEITER
P i 8 o e 3 38 AR B B D A5 BB - DA
AR TORBEEEERE  BRREE
HEYER  ERMETHNREBLEEL R
B BRERTHE®R -
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8. EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

8- #“RW=EE

EXREBESRESENARFTENT

based on:
For the For the
six months six months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2023 2022
BE HE
—EB-=HF —E-—F
AA=tHIE ANB=t+HIE
~ME A HIE N ERE]
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEET) (REEEET)
Revenue &
Net profit for the Period attributable to BERARALERAR
ordinary shareholders of the Company HE BEARE 10,954,145 3,595,279
Adjusted net profit for the Period attributable to ABEHEBRALR AL BRRER
ordinary shareholders of the Company 2 HFFHE 10,954,145 3,595,279
Shares )
Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary 82 Bl B 4TSN E B A% A INHE
shares of the Company (thousands) FHE(FR) 2,905,632 2,910,225




TRADE RECEIVABLES
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The credit terms offered to major customers of the Group are
generally 30 to 360 days. Trade receivables are non-interest-
bearing. The aging of trade receivables is recognized based

on the time of revenue recognition.

The aging analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-=FXNA=T+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT
FEUBR R

AEERBEIETFPNERMBERIOX
E360K o BUWRRIL TFHE - BUERER
BR IR N\ TSR O 5 ] T LA BEERR)
FEWER A AR DT AN T

30 June 31 December

2023 2022

—==-= —E-F

ANA=+H +=ZA=+—H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REE) (&FE

Within 1 year 1FE AR 41,929,050 27,927,498

1to 2 years 1FE 224 3,206,344 6,184,489

2 to 3 years 2FEFIF 2,545,215 3,849,206

Over 3 years 3FELF 4,220,620 3,656,999

Total A& 51,901,229 41,618,192
Less: Provision for bad debts of trade B FEBR R AR

receivables 2,842,369 2,789,698

49,058,860 38,828,494

The subsidies for new energy vehicle sales are included in the

above trade receivables.

AR RS U AR BB
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9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. JEWERI(E
30 June 2023 (Unaudited)
ZEC=ERA=TH(RESE)

Amountof  Percentage of
Book balance Percentage (%) bad debts  provision (%)
REHE £ 41(%) BESE  GHRIA%)

Individually assessed expected credit losses BERRERRAHRERER
provision for bad debts 1,057,964 2.04 1,043,340 98.62

Provision for bad debts based on expected credit  HERRRAAFERAER
losses assessed by credit risk portfolio BRHRRRER 50,843,265 97.96 1,799,029 3.54
51,901,229 100.00 2,842,369
31 December 2022 (Audited)
T AZT-HBEH)

Amountof  Percentage of
Book balance  Percentage (%) bad debts provision (%)
REHE ELH(%) BREE  EBRLAI%)

Individually assessed expected credit losses BRI RRRER
provision for bad debts 1,058,458 2.54 1,037,179 97.99

Provision for bad debts based on expected credit ~ RERRRAAFERBER
losses assessed by credit risk portfolio BRIHEERER 40,559,734 97.46 1752519 432
41,618,192 100.00 2,789,698




9.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group’s trade receivables with provision for bad debts

based on credit risk portfolio are as follows:
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FE Wi B R ()

ANEBMZEARBAATRERERHER
BRAIBRT ¢

30 June 2023 (Unaudited)

—E-=FEXAZTA(RESET)
Book balance Expected Credit loss
of estimated credit loss throughout
default rate (%) the lifetime
fist 2
BEENON RAER FEAE
RE A BEE(%) ERE%
Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ENREIE) 41,920,962 0.79 332,609
1-2 years (inclusive) 1-2F(525) 3,193,622 5.00 159,756
2-3 years (inclusive) 2-3F (53F 2,486,454 6.95 172,780
3-4 years (inclusive) 34F (545 1,863,604 8.22 153,231
4-5 years (inclusive) 455 (B55F 616,820 35.48 218,850
Over 5 years SEL L 761,803 100.00 761,803
50,843,265 1,799,029

31 December 2022 (Audited)
“E-FFTZAZt+-REET)

Book balance Expected Credit loss

of estimated credit loss throughout

default rate (%) the lifetime

2

e B EROR EHER FEHH

REBRE BERE(%) EREX

Within 1 year (inclusive) 1ENREIE) 27,915,925 1.12 313,871
1-2 years (inclusive) 125 (525) 6,121,236 4.98 304,956
2-3 years (inclusive) 2-3F (53F 3,810,277 4.47 170,265
34 years (inclusive) 4F(54F 1,403,412 13.38 187,781
4-5 years (inclusive) 4-5F (55F 1,009,241 47.16 476,003
Over 5 years SR L 299,643 100.00 299,643

40,559,734 1,762,519
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9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. JEWERI(E
As at 30 June 2023, the individual provision made for bad RZZEZ=FA="1H  HEFRERE
debts of trade receivables is as follows: BRREWERBRIT
Expected
Book Provision for credit loss
balance bad debts rate (%) Reason of provision
EHEA

AR BREE RARER BAE%) FHREH

Customer 1 xFP— 156,202 156,202 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FESHEE W E
Customer 2 ®EZ 110,377 110,377 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FE T ESE W E
Customer 3 BE= 84,616 84,616 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FE st AW E
Customer 4 EFM 80,034 80,034 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
AR EEWRE
Customer 5 ®FEHR 74,601 74,601 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
AR EE W E
Others Hh 552,134 537,510 97.35

Total CEn 1,057,964 1,043,340
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9. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. JEWERI(E
As at 31 December 2022, the individual provision made for RZZEZZF+HA=+—8  BHEHARE
bad debts of trade receivables is as follows: IREFBRNEKERBERIT ¢
Expected
Book Provision for credit loss
balance bad debts rate (%)  Reason of provision
TEEA(E A

AR AR AR BRE(%)  FHRIEH

Customer 1 xFE— 156,202 156,202 100.00  Expected to be
unrecoverable
TR AN T
Customer 2 XFEZ 110,377 110,377 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
TR ARG
Customer 3 ®E= 84,616 84,616 100.00  Expected to be
unrecoverable
TEET AU
Customer 4 ®FmM 74,601 74,601 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
TEEHE AN E
Customer 5 PR 69,488 69,488 100.00 Expected to be
unrecoverable
FREHE A D
Others Hh 563,174 541,895 96.22

Total At 1,058,458 1,037,179
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— = —

=

9.

=FRA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TFT
TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. EWERNE
The movements of provision for bad debts of trade receivables FEWBR RIB AR EFE R F BT
are as follows:
Exchange
Balance at differences Balance
beginning Charge Reversal Write-off  on translation at the end
of the for the for the during the of foreign of the
Period/year Period/year Period/year Period/year operations Period/year
8/ 54 x4/ F 8/ F x4/ F MERE B/8x
BE HE Eo £ REEH BE
30 June 2023 2% A=+H
(Unaudited) (REEBE) 2,789,698 441, 321 (376,161) (13,829) 1,340 2,342,369
31 December 2022 —E--#+-A=t-H
(Audited) (f&55) 2,154,399 999,965 (270,293) (99,036) 4,663 2,789,698

There was no significant change in the balance of provision for
bad debts of trade receivables during the Period. (2022: There
was no significant change in the balance of provision for bad
debts of trade receivables during the year.)

For the period ended 30 June 2023, there was no significant
reversal or recovery of trade receivables.

In 2022, there was no significant reversal or recovery of trade
receivables.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. JEWERI(E
As at 30 June 2023, the top five trade receivables (excluding RZEZ=FXA=+8  BRERTEH
new energy subsidies) amounts are as follows: BERMRARO BRI AT
Provision Percentage
for bad of total trade
Amount debts receivables (%)
1 FELK BR X

TH  ERERTE  AEMLHI(%)

The largest customer in balance of trade ~ JEWRIEF RS — KRS

receivables 3,097,515 6,849 5.97
The second largest customer in balance of JEWEEF TS — AR

trade receivables 1,543,712 13,276 2.97
The third largest customer in balance of WERAREE=REP

trade receivables 1,485,170 2,504 2.86
The fourth largest customer in balance of ~ EUWIEFHFEEINARE

trade receivables 1,114,954 2,646 2.15
The fifth largest customer in balance of BUMERREERAREP

trade receivables 968,890 2,132 1.87

8,210,241 27,407 15.82

As at 31 December 2022, the top five trade receivables RZZE-—HF+-A=+—8H  EBUEZRCK

(excluding new energy subsidies) amounts are as follows: EMEERAEM ) SBATARAOT ¢

Percentage

Provision of total trade

Amount for bad debts receivables (%)

16 FE YRR

2R ERERERE  AEOLHI(%)

The largest customer in balance of trade ~ EURFHEE —ATF

receivables 1,947,047 3,284 4.68
The second largest customer in balance of JEW IR F 4TS — AKF

trade receivables 1,016,648 5,148 2.44
The third largest customer in balance of ~ EWBERBEE = AFF

trade receivables 916,048 1,989 2.20
The fourth largest customer in balance of ~ JEUW IR FAATEEINAR S

trade receivables 840,657 80,649 2.02
The fifth largest customer in balance of ERERFHBEEAATP

trade receivables 748,966 1,672 1.80

5,469,366 92,742 13.14
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9.

10.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 9. JEWERI(E
In the ordinary course of business, the Group has factored a AEETEBEBTREHMERKIGHH
part of receivables to financial institutions without recourse EWRRIA B RES A EET S mgE
for its short-term financing needs, and has entered into Eﬂ%mﬂ%@%Ji?ﬁi&%%ﬁ’ﬂgﬂ&ﬁE KR
nonrecourse receivables factoring agreements with financial HUATEHBIERERRE]D - £8 TREK
institutions (the “Receivables Factoring”). Under certain RRRERET  AEETEZRERKER
receivables factoring agreements, the Group is not required m?’*—i}%&E@Tﬁﬁ%k?@%@ﬁwﬁﬂﬁi_ﬁ?ﬂﬂﬁﬁ
to undertake the risks of debtors’ default and delayed AR BB EWRKTBRE 2 FTE B E R
repayment after the transfer of receivables, and all risks and W feeREERLBREN  A&EH
rewards relating to the ownership of receivables transferred, %’TE%%@WJ* THRKRFIZBRRAEER
which satisfies the condition of derecognising financial IHER - RZTEZ=FA=+1H " £EH
assets, and the Group derecognises the receivables under Eﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%mﬁﬁﬁﬁ%E’Uﬁ%ﬂﬁ(ﬁ%%ﬂ(:?::i‘i’
such factoring agreements at their carrying amounts. As at ZA=+—H: AR®14,210,487F 1)
30 June 2023, there were no trade receivables transferred BARFEREENEBR(CE_F A=
under such factoring agreements (31 December 2022: +—A : AR¥22,719F ) °
RMB14,210,487,000) or loss related to derecognition (31
December 2022: RMB22,719,000).
BILLS PAYABLES 10 EBNRE
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
ANAB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) G&=))
Commercial acceptance bills BEEALIESZ 3,011,021 2,724,260
Bank acceptance bills RITAEGIESE 592,366 604,159
3,603,387 3,328,419
As at 30 June 2023, the outstanding balance of notes N-_E-_=F,"A=+H ' JEKXRNHEN

payable due was RMB13,108,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB15,900,000).

EEHREAAREI3108 T L(ZE-—F+
—A=+—8: AR¥15900F T) °
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TRADE PAYABLES
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30 June 2023
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BT BRX
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E=-= T —fF
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REFE) Cc&aay)

Within one year B
1 to 2 years 1FEZE2F
2 to 3 years 2FE3F
Over 3 years 3F M E

164,483,002 139,685,845

547,268 387,596
115,352 136,435
344,207 327,434

165,489,829 140,437,310

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally
settled within six months. The aging of trade payables is based
on the time of recognizing the purchase of materials and
goods or accepting services.

As at 30 June 2023 and 31 December 2022, the Group had no
significant trade payables aged over one year.

SHARE CAPITAL

The registered and paid-in capital of the Company is analysed
as follows:

12

ERNERRTE S WBFEECMEAREME -
ENBERNERRENBENE  BRIER
B ERRHNRERESE -

RIE-_=FAA=Z+ARZT-_—_F+=
AZ+—8 EREBB1IFNESENE
e

[N

ARBEMEBEEBRADHTIOT

30 June 31 December

2023 2022
—E-= ==
ANA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEE) (&)
Registered and paid-in capital RS- 2,911,143 2,911,143
Nominal value per share BREE RMB1 RMB1

17T 17T

71



72

BYD Company Limited
LEmBRBARAE

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7 R 3= B &
30 June 2023
—E-=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

12. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

The class and structure of shares are as follows:

30 June 2023 (Unaudited)

12

R < (#)
BB REABNT

—E=ZFEXRNA=ZTHCREE

Number of shares increased
(decreased) during the Period

REE Rl R &
Number

of shares Number
at the of shares
beginning Non-public at the end
of the Period offering Others of the Period
HIRE FOBRT Hit HRRE

Restricted shares BREEMRR
Shares held by domestic corporate BREARR - - - -
Shares held by domestic natural persons ~ BRBAARR 648,378,251 = = 648,378,251
Total restricted shares BRERHRNAR 648,378,251 - - 648,378,251

Non-restricted shares EREKMRR
RMB ordinary shares AREZER 1,164,764,604 = = 1,164,764,604
Foreign shares listed overseas BN ETRIINE R 1,098,000,000 = = 1,098,000,000
Total non-restricted shares BREEMRROAE 2,262,764,604 = = 2,262,764,604

R &%

Total number of shares

2,911,142,855

2,911,142,855
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12. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 12 - BRAR(E)
31 December 2022 (Audited) TECCFFT A=t REER
Number of shares increased
(decreased) in the year
AREL () R AN
Number Number
of shares of shares
at the beginning Non-public atthe end
of the year offering Others of the year
ENRE FRRET £t EXRE
Restricted shares BRERRRN
Shares held by domestic natural persons 3B ERAER 658,084,620 - (9,706,369) 648,378,251
Total restricted shares BREEKRNEH 658,084,620 - (9,706,369) 648,378,251
Non-restricted shares ERE KRR
RMB ordinary shares ARELER 1,155,058,235 - 9,706,369 1,164,764,604
Foreign shares listed overseas O EMEINERR 1,098,000,000 - - 1,098,000,000
Total non-restricted shares ERERERG A 2,253,058,235 - 9,706,369 2,262,764,604

Total number of shares Rintag 291,142,855 - - 2,911,142,855
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS 13- RO
1. Overview 1. B
Equity-settled share-based payments are as follows: IR EENRGOZ AT :
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E == -2
AH=t+H +=ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEES) (=)
Accumulated balance of equity-settled PR EE RN XN ABR
share-based payments credited to RIER RET 458
capital reserve 1,349,851 781,996
Total expenses recognised for equity-settled ZRH3,/ & SAREZS & & D S [ HER
share-based payments in the Period/year MWERRE 567,855 591,309
2, Share-based payment plan 2. B3 =S5 E
(1) 2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan of the (1) —E - FREESTRK
Group 57L§/

On 22 April 2022, BYD Company Limited held
the twenty-first meeting of the seventh session of
the board of directors of BYD Company Limited
(the “Company”), at which the resolution in
relation to the 2022 Employee Share Ownership
Plan (Draft) of BYD Company Limited and its
summary was considered and approved. It was
proposed to implement the 2022 Employee
Share Ownership Plan of BYD Company Limited
(the “Employee Share Ownership Plan”) for the
employee representative supervisors and senior
management of BYD Company Limited and
the mid-level management and core backbone
employees of BYD Group. The Employee Share
Ownership Plan was considered and approved
at the 2022 First Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on 27 May 2022. The
Company repurchased a total of 5,511,024
A shares through the designated securities
account for repurchase by way of centralised
bidding transactions, accounting for 0.189%
of the total share capital of the Company. The
repurchase was completed in June 2022 and
the transfer registration was completed in July
2022.

ZEFEPAZ+ZH &
DEBROERA AR BREE
MR ER AR (A TERIA
AELEESEE-+—
% FamA T hRmik
DERAT —E-_—FB8I1H
“#ﬂ@;»&ﬁﬁﬁm%
HRETLE TR hﬁﬁ@
ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ ﬁAE
M&%E@%@m¢%gﬁA
8 ZRUBBHBIEM(LE
HRMBRARIZEZ_F8
ITHERFE) A TEBIET
FRETE) - ARIRZE ==
FRAZ+EHBHAZZE ==
FE— m%hh%ﬁA'*%
LLTEIﬁkﬁﬂ NGILE]
BOEEAEARPUAESRR
EBERXSr AR R0 EARRKR
MEIEE A5511,024f% + 1h
NAE B AE0.189% ¢ IE’\
—E-—FXNARKEE -
gi:itﬂm&@ﬁéﬂo
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

(1)

2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan of the
Group (continued)

The term of the Employee Share Ownership Plan
shall be 48 months from the date on which the
Employee Share Ownership Plan is considered
and approved at the general meeting and the
Company announces that the last batch of the
underlying shares is transferred to the Employee
Share Ownership Plan.

The underlying shares held by the Employee
Share Ownership Plan will be unlocked
in three tranches, namely 12 months, 24
months and 36 months from the date of the
Company’s announcement of the last transfer
of the underlying shares to the Employee
Share Ownership Plan, and the percentage
of the underlying shares to be unlocked in
each tranche will be 30%, 30% and 40%,
respectively.

The company performance indicator for
the unlocking of shares is the growth rate
of operating income and the individual
performance indicator should reach the “to be
improved” level or above.

13-

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-=FA=+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

R A7 XA+ (&)
2. ROXZMAFEE

(1)

CE D AEEETHR
&I (&)

AETIHBFENTERR
4818 A - BAB THGEHE
RERAGEZBBARRR
ERE-EENERBFPER
BTHBFEET ZERE -

NE TR EFEMEMR
=N = HAMRY - RREEFZ D R
BERARAEREBE —FZENR
ERFEEARS THREET
ZzBEm12@A - 24@A -
361 A - SFHMRHEMNIZAR
ZH 55 A30% - 30%
40% °

BRERBHAORNBREEERRE
EWRABRE - [EAREER
ER [ BOE IR A £ -
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 13- RO XN E@E
2, Share-based payment plan (continued) 2, B 173 2 445 81 ()
(1) 2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan of the (1) ZZE-—FAREBZETHR
Group (continued) &I (&)
The specific conditions for the vesting of share ETHRESHETEHRTITHELN
options granted during each lock-up period are EREHDT
as follows:
Proportion of
the number of
shares unlocked to
the total number of
underlying shares
transferred under the
Employee Share Performance appraisal
Ownership Plan  Unlocking date indicators
BERZHE
ERETHRE
Unlocking Period STEENRE
R LYWL RERH EEEZRER
First Unlocking Period 30% 12 months from the date of the Based on the operating income
£—(EHEEN Company’s announcement of in 2021, the growth rate of
the last transfer of the underlying  operating income in 2022 shall
shares to the Employee Share not be lower than 30%
Ownership Plan
ARAIAERE-—EENREBP N-T-—5E2RAAEE
ZAETHRFEE T ZARE T FMEERAERE
w1218 A MMEHR30%
Second Unlocking Period 30% 24 months from the date of the Based on the operating income
5 (EREHE Company’s announcement of in 2022, the growth rate of
the last transfer of the underlying  operating income in 2023 shall
shares to the Employee Share not be lower than 20%
Ownership Plan
ARAIAERE-EENREBRP N-T-_F8X2B AR
ZAEIRRFEL T ARE T =FMEERAERE
2418 A MMEHR20%
Third Unlocking Period 40% 36 months from the date of the Based on the operating income

F (AR

Company’s announcement of
the last transfer of the underlying
shares to the Employee Share
Ownership Plan

BERAAERE-—ERNRTHR
FEAREIRRHEETZAR
Hif361E A

in 2023, the growth rate of
operating income in 2024 shall
not be lower than 20%

NWZEZ=F2ZKRAAEE
“EoNFMEERAERR
TMER20%
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

(1)

(2)

2022 Employee Share Ownership Plan of the
Group (continued)

The fair value of shares to be issued upon the
exercise the share options granted under the
Employee Share Ownership Plan at the date
of grant was RMB1,863,773,000, which was
calculated based on the closing price of the
shares of BYD Company Limited of RMB338.19
per share on 15 July 2022. The subscription
price of the Employee Share Ownership Plan is
RMBO per share, and no capital contribution is
required to be made by the participants. Among
them, the share-based payment fee recognized
by the Group in January-dune 2023 was
RMB538,768,000 (January-June 2022: RMBO).

2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of the
Group’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor

On 10 May 2021 and 16 June 2021, the
Company held the 11th Meeting of the Seventh
Session of the Board and the extraordinary
general meeting, respectively, at which the
Resolution on the Proposed Share Option
Scheme of BYD Semiconductor Company
Limited was considered and approved, and
the adoption of the 2020 Share Option Scheme
of BYD Semiconductor Company Limited
(the “Subsidiary Share Option Scheme”)
was approved. The Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme granted 33,088,200 share options to
36 incentive participants, including directors
(excluding independent non-executive
directors), senior management and core
personnel (excluding supervisors) of BYD
Semiconductor, representing 7.353% of the
then registered capital of BYD Semiconductor.

13-

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

IR A2 3214 (&)

2. ROXZMEEGE

(1)

2)

—E - FAEECBTRHK
afé‘/(,ééf)

BYTHEIRHRTEMOEL
BTEBAREBEEBEAARE
1,863,773F JT * MLt fg
BBERARN-E-—F+ A
+x E%;‘T‘euﬁzf‘%ss 197¢,/
BAEMRE - KB THRET
Elrid EOTE/HX 25
B|ELE - Hep  AE@ERZ
= :E :.:/\HEEME’?HX
ML ERAAARKS38,768

Frn(ZZEZ=—F—%"A:0
TT) ©
CECTFLREE FRALE

THFE R IRERE B

—E-FHEATERZZC
—FXA+<B  KQARIDHI

BRELEEFEE+—RE
ERREREAS  BHEE

T <<E§7:T"tt§EL¥% 2 i {0
N AR E He A S ED T B
E%%S>> %Lt/ﬁmfﬂttEELﬂﬁ%

R BERARI ZZE_ZFRK
%ﬁﬂ%%ﬁlﬁbﬁ%ﬂ(f% A
BARERTEID) - TR A HIRE S

FrEIMBIELL m - B E
E(MBEBLIERITES) -
BRERAE - BOBHABR
(B BIEES)fENR36EM
Eh¥ 5 4% ¥3,308.828 1) i 1E
HAME - {5 SR B RS B BT
MEARE LB A7.353% °
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

(2)

2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Group’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor
(continued)

The share options granted under the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme shall be exercised in
three tranches, and the corresponding vesting
periods shall be 24 months, 36 months and 48
months from the Date of Grant, respectively. The
share options granted shall commence from the
date of grant and shall be exercised in tranches
during the following three exercise periods. For
the first, second and third exercise periods,
30%, 30% and 40% of the share options are
exercisable subject to the satisfaction of
performance conditions. The exercise price is
RMB5 per share. Options which fail to obtain
the right to exercise due to failure to meet
the performance conditions or those which
have not been exercised in the current period
after the end of the exercise period shall
become null and void and be repurchased
without consideration and cancelled by BYD
Semiconductor.

Performance indicators for the exercise of
share options include company performance
indicators and individual performance
indicators. In particular, individual performance
indicator should reach the “to be improved”
level or above and company performance
indicators include:

(1) Revenue from operations;

(2) Net profit.

13-

B2 2 A (&)
2. B3 XS EI(E)
(2) C—E-TEREEZFAAMN

B FERIRERE B &
(&

RRFRARIREAETEIR T
RORRAEHRE D = IRATHE - BB
MWEFE IR AERTAR
2418 A - 36f@ 7 - 487 -
BEYFHOREHERETERA
1h o EZ BB =BT D K
T B— FME =T
HEED BIE30% ~ 30% ~ 40%
RERRETE R B AR ATIR T
EERITHERER - ITHRER
BETTARE B Rk
BB G T R BE SIS AT IR T Y
iRk E TR RIA B HER
TTHE ) DR AR ERAE 1 T R VRS
B bt 20 36 - 28 B 4 (UK (5] 30 47
—FEEH o

PEEIRET TR R AR ER
NAIEEREEREARERE
% R EARERRAED
[FFBCE IR R A L - REJE
BIRREN
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED) 13 BRMA X&)
2, Share-based payment plan (continued) 2. B 173 2 445 81 ()

(2) 2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of (2) ZEFFELRER T FLRAIE
the Group'’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor FhiF BRI E R AT
(continued) =
Specific conditions for each exercise period of BT RS TR 1T
the share options granted: BRI

Exercise
Exercise period proportion  Exercise time Exercise conditions
TR fTRELL B TREE  TRERN
First exercise period 30% 2022.5.12=  The growth rate of operating revenue and
(“Phase 1") 2023.5.11 net profit for the accounting year prior to the
exercise date of the first exercise period
shall not be less than 20% as compared
with the previous year
E—ETEB(E—H) 30% 20225.12-  FETRBATRAN —STFENEEK
2023.5.11 AMENBEER E—FENERETER20%
Second exercise period 30% 2023.5.12=  The growth rate of operating revenue and
(“Phase II") 2024.5.11 net profit for the accounting year prior to the
exercise date of the second exercise period
shall not be less than 20% as compared
with the previous year
EETEHIE=HD 30% 2023512 F_(AITRHATEBEA - EENEEK
2024.5.11 AFFMBER E—FEHEREMER20%
Third exercise period 40% 2024.5.12=  The growth rate of operating revenue and
(“Phase I1I") 2025.5.12 net profit for the accounting year prior to
the exercise date of the third exercise
period shall not be less than 20% as
compared with the previous year
F=ETEBIE=H)) 40% 20245.12-  F={ETHEHRTRAN -G FENEFK
2026512 ATEMER L —FEHNRRETER20%

As at 30 June 2023, the exercise conditions
of the first exercise period of the Subsidiary
Share Option Scheme had been fulfilled, and
there were 9,826,400 exercisable share options
in total, of which a total of 6,218,800 share
options had been exercised and the remaining
3,607,700 share options had been cancelled
as they were not exercised during the exercise
period.

(2 _E-=4XA=1+H8 "
TR B S — 1T
ERRROTTRER(FR L + AT THE
RO A HAHE A 51 982.648 15 -
$5t621.888 19 A 1E B ETT
- FI#R360.778 (7 Kk HAME
Ei R/ TIEE ) E 8 o
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13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

(2)

2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Group’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor
(continued)

The appraised value of the equity-settled share
options granted was RMB337,098,000. Among
them, the Group recognised a share option
expense of RMB29,087,000 for the Period
(January-June 2022: RMB51,062,000).

The appraised value of the Share Options
on the Date of Grant is estimated using the
binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the Share Options
were granted. The following table lists the input
variables to the model used:

13-

B& 172 2 15 (&)
2. % 47 32 4 5 81 (&)
(2) ZE-FFLEERZFRAL

B FERIRERE B &
(&

T M DA R 25 A5 B O A HR A
R EEE A ARE337,098
For o Hp RSB N AT
ROBEAEBBAEARE
29,087F T (—E-_—FE—%F
NA G AR#ES1,062F T ©

A E AR T B ST (R
B RA-ERER  HAHE
F R HE EE A0 AR 0 - 1
s © TRFIR T AR
MEARE

Phase | Phase Il Phase Il
Exercise period THEH £ £=-H $£=H
Expected volatility iEa RS 52.80% 51.99% 57.88%
Risk-free interest rate 3 b A = 1.60% 1.81% 2.02%

Expected volatility is an assumption based on
the future trend reflected by historical volatility,
and hence may not be the actual result. No
other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

TEEHR B R RERE LR E X
RERBR R BHRE - B
YA —ERERNER - 2R
EBERERAETRELEDN
H AR -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

2. Share-based payment plan (continued)

(2)

2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme of
the Group’s subsidiary BYD Semiconductor
(continued)

Pursuant to the Subsidiary Share Option
Scheme, if the Company is converted into a
joint stock company, the number and exercise
price of the share options will be adjusted
according to the proportion of the number of
shares after the conversion. On 3 December
2020, the first session of the board of directors
of BYD Semiconductor passed the Resolution
in relation to the Company’s Adjustment on
the 2020 Share Option Incentive Scheme
and the Implementation, Assessment and
Management Measures of the Share Option
Incentive Scheme, which adjusted the First
Share Option Incentive Scheme implemented
by BYD Semiconductor Co., Ltd. The resolution
changed the number of share options granted
to employees from “30,019,760” to “33,088,235”
and the exercise price of the share options
from “RMB5.00/per each contributed yuan”
to “RMB4.54/per share” according to the
movement in the percentage of shares
converted as a result of the conversion of BYD
Semiconductor into a joint stock company.

13-

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

R A7 XA+ (&)
2. ROXZMAFEE

(2)

TECEFAEEFRFIL
B FERIRERE B &
€

TFREIREREAZINENR
RIEHI AR A R] - SRIERR
17 I 24 1 78 80 RS B L 191 4 B 4
HERITRERETHAE - =
T-TF+-F=H  thapE
FERE-EEEYRERA
TC(ARFAERTN T _TF
P& 1R HARE 5 B =T B AN AR A HA A
BEAEEREREEINAN
BRE)  RaERY s
BARAR B E X IRER
BIRTEIEIT THE - ZARR
NS SR Eo) e 6=
LEBl - 453 F B TR AR B e
HEM30,019,7601) | & F A
[33,088,2350% ] + 7% AR ##E #Y
TREBHRHI5.007T, F1TH
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=

=

e 2023
—FNA=1H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

14.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities arising from pending litigation or
arbitration and its financial impact

Action against Foxconn

On 11 June 2007, an action (the “June 2007 Action”) was
commenced in the Hong Kong High Court (the “Court”) by a
subsidiary of Foxconn International Holdings Limited and a
company jointly controlled by its ultimate holding company (the
“Plaintiffs”) against the Company and certain subsidiaries of
the Group (the “Defendants”) for using confidential information
alleged to have been obtained improperly from the Plaintiffs.
The Plaintiffs discontinued the June 2007 Action on 5 October
2007 without any liability to the Defendants. On the same
day, the Plaintiffs initiated a new set of legal proceedings in
the Hong Kong High Court (the “October 2007 Action”). The
Defendants named in the October 2007 Action are the same
as the Defendants in the June 2007 Action, and the claims
made by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action are based
on the same facts and grounds in the June 2007 Action. The
remedies sought by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action
include an injunction restraining the Defendants from using the
alleged confidential information, an order for the disgorgement
of profit made by the Defendants through the use of the
confidential information, damages based on the loss suffered
by the Plaintiffs and exemplary damages. The total damages
sought by the Plaintiffs in the October 2007 Action have not
been quantified. On 2 October 2009, the Defendants instituted
a counter-action against Foxconn International Holdings
Limited and certain of its subsidiaries for their intervention,
by means of illegal measures, in the operations involving the
Company and certain of its subsidiaries, collusion, written and
verbal defamation, and the economic loss as a result of the
said activities since 2006.

As at the reporting date, the case remains in the process of
legal proceedings. With the assistance of the legal adviser
responsible for the case on behalf of the Company, the Board
is of the view that the estimate ultimate outcome and amount
to settle the obligation, if any, of the litigation cannot be made
reliably up to date.

14 -
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 14 -

The contingent liabilities arising from the guarantee
provided by the Group and its financial impact are as
follows:

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—“E-=FA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT
HEEHE(E)

AEEREERFEANIEEEREHS
EEDRMT

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F T
ANB=+H +=-A=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEST) (k251
Guarantees that the Company can provideto  #i% T 7R RIM B & sES M SR 1T 106,016,296 102,279,134
banks for financing granted to subsidiaries R ER
106,016,296 102,279,134

As at 30 June 2023, the actual guarantees provided by
the Company for its subsidiaries and related parties were
RMB33,764,846,000 and RMB16,677,101,000 (31 December
2022: RMB23,180,113,000 and RMB13,468,762,000).

RZE_=ZFXA=1+H AR aisH
FTRARBABFERRENERABAR
#:33,764,846 T T M ARM16,677,101F
T(ZEZZF+ZRA=+—RH: AR%
23,180,113 F L X AR #13,468,762F 7T) °
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—FNA=1H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

14.

15.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The Group entered into cooperation contracts and documents
with certain customers (including end customers) and third
parties or related financial institutions. According to the
arrangements of the relevant cooperation contracts and
documents, the Company undertakes repurchase obligations
to these financial institutions. If a customer defaults or specific
conditions stipulated in the contract occur, the Company
inherits all the creditor’s rights and related interests, and has
the right to take relief measures such as recovery and sale of
new energy vehicles to repay the remaining debts owed by
the customer to the financing institution, and reserves the right
to claim the remaining creditor’s rights. Management believes
that the recovered assets can be sold, and the proceeds of the
sale will basically cover the remaining arrears to the financing
institutions. As of 30 June 2023, the Group’s maximum
exposure to these obligations was RMB2,591,253,000 (31
December 2022: RMB3,395,512,000), and there was no
customer default or specific conditions as stipulated in the
contracts which the Company was required to make any
payment.

The Group recognised a loss allowance of RMB96,246,000
(2022: RMB78,794,000) for financial guarantee contracts
based on expected credit losses.

14 -

CEES=LC )

AEBEREEF(BRHEP)RE=T1%
BB RERBERAEEREX - REM

MEaFARRXFNZE » ARARZER
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[Fl 497 RN TE M6 1+ AR Bl A 2 AR E R A
KARRIME R - Y HE B 1T ERERIK O 30 2 B
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AEBAERERBRIRER  WHBER
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96,246 F (T - —4F : ARMT78,794F
JT) °

COMMITMENTS 15+ EHEEIE
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-= —F-—
ANB=+RH +-A=+—8H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEST) (88 2&5T)
Contracted, but not provided for EENEREE
Capital commitments BN, 40,602,694 41,434,155
Investment commitments* 1§ & EGE™ 681,633 759,139
41,284,327 42,193,294
* The commitments above do not include investment * U EAEEBETEHAECENIRERR -

commitments to joint ventures.
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B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16 - BHXZ
(1)  Related party transactions of goods and services (1) BEHIEEREERXS
Sales of goods and rendering of services to related [0 A Bt 77 S P am S AR R 45 7
parties
January-June January-June
2023 2022
—E=-= ==
—Z5xA —ZRA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BBEXIRNA (REEER) CRESERT)
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd.  Sales of goods and rendering of services
AL R TEBRAT HERRIRMESH = 240,971
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
KEEaTERRAR HEBRMRHSTH 8 191
Shenzhen Shell BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Sales of goods and rendering of services
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries HERRMRELEE
RYFE L BB TEREBRARREFAH 1,409 10,510
Shenzhen BYD International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd. Rendering of services
A R EREERAR ST 15 13
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
BT ESBARAT HEB MRS 194,223 206,856
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
MM R R TR BR AT HEBRMRHESH 34 439
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
BMNEAL B R ERRAR HEBRTRREH 1,623 2723
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology Sales of goods and rendering of services
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries HERRMRHEH
AT AR ERRERARRATAR 6,138 4,599
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and Sales of goods and rendering of services
its subsidiaries HE AR
REERBREERRARREFAR 419 1,814
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd.  Sales of goods and rendering of services
BRI EREEREEAF HEBRMERSH - 17
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B % R AR M AL

30 June 2023

—Z2-=FXA=+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(1)

Related party transactions of goods and services 1)

(continued)

Sales of goods and rendering of services to related

parties (continued)

16 - BB

BELIEmREERS (K

A R B 07 8K 6 7 mm R AR (R 85 75 ()

January-June January-June
2023 2022
—E2-= —F-—
—Z5xA —ZERA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BBEXZNE (REER) (CREEEET)
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and Sales of goods and rendering of services
its subsidiaries HERRMRESHE
ABEERTEBEBERARRETFAR 221,970 155,944
Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
ATELERBERABRAR HERmNRREH a7 240
Beijing Hualin Loading Co., Ltd. Sales of goods
I RERFERERRAT HEAmM - 367
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
RELARMEREFRAA HEBmMRHETH 4 39
Meihao Travel (Hangzhou) Automotive Technology ~ Sales of goods and rendering of services
Co., Ltd. HEB MRS
EHHTIM) TEREAR AR 1,393 26,246
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
HHaEHERERRERAR HE R w5 572,385 1,249
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Rendering of services
REmEhEHRHERAT ST 7 6
Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
RERATREEARATA HEBRMRMHSTH 3 9
ONYX International Inc. Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
BMXAGEEREERAR HEBRMRMS - 752
Shenzhen Microgrid Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
RS ERRERRF HEBRMERSH 278 9,849



16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

(1)
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B % ¥R AR M R

16

Related party transactions of goods and services

(continued)

Sales of goods and rendering of services to related

parties (continued)

30 June 2023

—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

BB S

(1) BERIEaRREERSE)

A R B 07 8K 6 7 mm R AR (R 85 75 ()

January-June January-June
2023 2022
—EB-=HF —F-—
—Z5xA —ZERA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BBEXZNE (REER) (CREEEET)
Shenzhen Dipai Zhixing Technology Co., Ltd. Sales of goods and rendering of services
RTERETRRER A HEBRMRHSTH 7,640 330
LA SkyRail Express Holding LLC Sales of goods and rendering of services
HERRAMRELTH 61,725 -
Sichuan Road and Bridge Group Co., Ltd. Sales of goods
mIEBRREERNBRAF HERm 64,652 -
Chengxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Sales of goods
BHEREERNERARREFAR HEAmM 945 -
Shenzhen Shangshui Intelligent Co., Ltd. Sales of goods
A KB R ERAR HERmR 26 -
Guangdong CHNBEL Energy Technology Co., Ltd.  Rendering of services
EBRFRERHMEERRA RESH 99 -
YOUNGY Co., Ltd. Sales of goods
BERNBRAR HERm 208 -
1,136,175 663,164

87



88

BYD Company Limited
LeEERBBRAT

Notes to Financial Statements

BF % ¥R AR M RE

30 June 2023

—Z2-=FXA=+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

16 - BB Z (&

(CONTINUED)
(1)  Related party transactions of goods and services (1) BEIERREEXRSE)
(continued)

Purchase of goods and accepting service from related

parties

January-June

AR T SRIE R m AR X 15

January-June

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E--F
—Z5xH —EXA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BURIRE (REEF) (Rigzst)
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods and accepting service
RELTHAEBRRA REELNERS 19 15,506
Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Co., Ltd.  Purchase of goods and accepting service
KRR TETRRA RERRMEREH - 190
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods and accepting service
EMERL B REEERAT FEAORNEZSH 768 29,428
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. and Accepting service
its subsidiaries BB
RERRREEERARRETFAT - 5
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. Accepting service
HEERESRBRAR BEX8H% 458,636 188,200
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Accepting service
MM R TERRAF BX8% 1,612 325
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods
and its subsidiaries REESD
RYBEREBHERLAREFRA 3,974,100 2,362,462
Shenzhen Shell BYD Electric Vehicle Investment Accepting service and purchase of fuel and
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries power such as water, electricity and gas
IR TEEHTBREERDARETAR  EXEBREEKSREIHENEH - 1,381
Chengdu Youngy Lithium Technology Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods
AR R S R AR A ] KB 30,654 86,137



16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(1)
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16

Related party transactions of goods and services

(continued)

Purchase of goods and accepting service from related

parties (continued)

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

BB S (&

(1) BERIARREEXRSE

R R MR XS5 (&)

January-June January-June
2023 2022
—BIZ=F “ToCF
—Z5xA —ERA
Details of transactions (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
BBEXZRE (REE) (Rigzet)
Meihao Travel (Hangzhou) Automotive Technology ~ Accepting service
Co., Ltd. BX8%
FHFMITIM) SEREBR A E 2,231 -
Sichuan Changhehua Lithium Technology Co., Ltd.  Purchase of goods
M RAEERRERAR REA = 202,028
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods
REMEHEHERXBERAR REAm 878 144
Foshan Greifen New Energy Co., Ltd. and its Purchase of goods
subsidiaries REmm
LTRSS HERERARRATAF 192,055 -
Chengpxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries Purchase of goods
BRHEEEERNBERAFLEFAF KBRS 1,137,775 -
Guangdong CHNBEL Energy Technology Co., Ltd.  Purchase of goods
ERF R ERLE REA®m 21,062 -
Shenzhen Shangshui Intelligent Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods
AT ERRHBRAR REEm 927 -
BYD UZBEKISTAN FACTORY LLC Accepting service
BX8% 55,990 -
Wuxi Yiwen Electronic Technology Co., Ltd Purchase of goods
EHBNETRRARRA REAm 16 -
5,876,723 2,885,896
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30 June 2023
—Z2-=FXA=+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

(CONTINUED)

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16 - B Z (@)
(2) Leases with related parties 2 BEIHEE
As lessees TERAMEA
January-June 2023 (Unaudited) ZE-=F-EXNACREER
Lease
payments for Variable
short-term lease
leases and payments
leases of  not included
low-value in the Interest
assets with measurement expenses  Additions to
Type of simplified of lease Rental onlease right-of-use
leased assets  approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
AEEEN
EREEN LS PN
EBEEE HEAR REN
HEEE HENEE HENTE HEAR Eme
BE BR HERRE XARHEe FExlt EREZE
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 555 36 -
MAER e R EERAF EE
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Housing - - 1,718 35 3,442
RENTETERRAA EE
- - 2,273 | 3,442




(CONTINUED)
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B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16 - B Z (@)
(2) Leases with related parties (continued) 2 BEIEEE
As lessees (continued) YEEATA (B)
January-June 2022 (Unaudited) ZE-F-EXNACREER
Lease
payments for Variable
short-term lease
leases and payments
leasesof  notincluded
low-value inthe Interest
assets with  measurement expenses  Additions to
Type of simplified of lease Rental onlease  right-of-use
leased assets approach liabilities paid liabilities assets
BlLEEN
EHEER REA
EBEEE HEaR A
HEEE HEMEe  GENTE SAfTH) HEaRE SE e
BR BR  HMENFE ik MExt  RRAREE
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Housing - - 1,666 11 -
MAER e R EERAF BE
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Housing - - 733 78 -
RELDEAERRAT FE
Xi'an Infrastructure Yadi Automobile Service Co., Ltd. Equipment - - 19 - -
BRER T EREEREL AR HiE

- 2,418 189 -
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30 June 2023
ZEZ=FR

A=+H

RMB'000 AR®TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

16 - BB Z (&

(CONTINUED)
(3)  Providing guarantees to related parties (3) HEBLREMER
Loan guarantees AR
30 June 2023 (Unaudited) —E-=FEXA=HRGREE
Whether
Commencement Maturity guarantee
Guarantee  date of date of has been
amount  guarantee guarantee performed
EREE FRERA ERIMA BTxE
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. 16,555,000 12 July 2022— 27 October 2023~ No
HEdEeRERAR 28 June 2023 28 June 2027
ZECZELATZHE  ZBCZETACTLHE B
ZECZERASTNE ZEDEERASTNR
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease 62,545 30 June 2023 N/A No
Co., Ltd. “B-=ERA=TH TER &
RELAREARERRAT
MCC Ramu New Energy 56,000 11 January 2019 4 April 2030 No
Technology Co., Ltd. “E-NE-A+-H “E=ZEMAMA B
PRmAR RN AR AR
Hubei Energy Storage Co., Ltd. 3,556 1 February 2019 1 February 2026 No
fEE UML) BRAE —2-n%¥-A-H ZEZREZA-H &




16.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Interim Report 2023
Se-=FamEs 99

Notes to Financial Statements
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— =

30 June 2023

=FNA=+H

RMB'000 AR#TIT

16 - BB Z (&

(CONTINUED)
(3)  Providing guarantees to related parties 3) AEBELIRHERE
(continued)
Loan guarantees (continued) BEREREE)
31 December 2022 (Audited) - —F+ - F=+—B@&ET)
Commencement Maturity
Guarantee  date of date of Whether guarantee
amount  guarantee guarantee has been performed
EREE  ERERA ERIEA ERREARNTE
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. 13,292,650 28 January 2022~ 27 October 2023 - No
HRETESHERAA 16 December 2022 15 December 2026
“E--f-f-+)\BE ZZE-ZETA-t+AZE &
ZECZFFZATAR ZECAFTZATRA
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease 112,788 31 December 2022 N/A No
Co., Ltd. “Z-F+-A=1+-H TERH A
RELERERERRAT
MCC Ramu New Energy 57,500 11 January 2019 4 April 2030 No
Technology Co., Ltd. —E-NE-R+-H “Z=T5MARA &
HRm AR R AR AR
Hubei Energy Storage Co., Ltd. 5824 1February 2019 1 February 2026 No

A RO BRRE

“Z-NFZA-A

“E-RF-A-H
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30 June 2023
—E-=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16 - BB S (&)
(CONTINUED)
(4)  Transfer of related parties assets 4 BEISEEE

January-June

January-June

2023 2022
—EC-= —EF-

—&XA —ZXA

Details of transaction (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

RHAR (REE) (CREEEET)

Shenzhen Shangshui Intelligent Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 371,360 -
ARYT KB RER D AR AR BEETEE

Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 258,704 66,163
RETEHETRIBAERAR BEETEE

Tianjin Sanying Precision Instruments Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 15,230 -
REZRIFEBERBLNDBRAA BERETAE

Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 2,294 -
RELD#TEARAA BEETEE

Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Purchase of fixed assets 2,751 5,422
MNP R ae R T E AR A A BEETEE

Shenzhen DENZA New Energy Automotive Disposal of fixed assets

Co., Ltd. - 5,100
RYNEE e RTEARAA] HEREEEE

Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. Disposal of fixed assets - 61
MNP L B Hr s IR T =B IR A A HERETEEE

650,339 76,746
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—E-_=FA=1+H
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16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS B R 5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
(5) Others Hit
January-June January-June
2023 2022
—E—= —ZE=-=
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE) CReggEED
Key Management Compensation TR ASS 50,636 35,791
Notes: R

M

2

The share-based payment expense recognised
from January to June 2023 for the 2022 Employee
Share Ownership Plan granted to key management
personnel of the Company was RMB29,555,000.
The above compensation does not include this
amount.

Related party transactions of goods: During the
period, the Group conducted transactions of goods
and services with related parties based on market
prices.

Assets transfer of related parties: The pricing
principle of the Group’s sale and purchase of fixed
assets to and from related parties during the year
was determined based on the market price.

2

AARBEREEABERN
T FEIFRAEIRZE
—FE-EZXNAEINRNE
~NBRAAARKE29,555F T ¢
FFHMAR B ERIBSHE -

BEITEMRS  AMAKE
AT B R AT BB 7 17
AR5 °

BB L EESE  AEEAREF
RMEHSTHE BEETEE
MR 5 EBRIKETSER
T
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30 June 2023

—Z2-=FXA=+H
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16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(5) Others (continued)

Notes:

4

Repurchase obligation

The Group entered into cooperation contracts and
documents with certain related parties and third
parties or related financing institutions. According
to the arrangements of the relevant cooperation
contracts and documents, the Company undertakes
the repurchase obligations to these financing
institutions. If the related parties violated the
contracts or the specific conditions stipulated
in the contracts occurred, the Company would
inherit all the creditor’s rights and relevant rights
and interests, and have the right to take recovery
and sale of new energy vehicles and other relief
measures on its own to repay the remaining arrears
owed by the customers to the financing institutions,
and would reserve the right to pursue recourse for
the balance of the creditor’s rights if the proceeds
from sales were insufficient to repay the remaining
arrears. Management believes that the recovered
assets can be sold, and the proceeds of the
sale will basically cover the remaining arrears
to the financing institutions. As at 30 June 2023,
there was no default of related parties or specific
conditions agreed in the contract that required the
Company to make payments.

a. As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s
maximum exposure of such obligations
to Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle
Technology Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
was RMB188,785,000 (31 December 2022:
RMB465,489,000).

b. As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s
maximum exposure of such obligations
to YOUNGY Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries
was RMBO (31 December 2022:
RMB16,215,000).

16

B 5 (1)
(5) EHit(#@®
g
(4) EiEEB

AEBEELOBB T RE=ZT
B RERBRITAEAR
Xt - REBEHBAIEAR R
XML ARRRZER
AWBEEORBERY - BRI
TERHOEXBRHENEE
flett » AR B A ERE A
KRR - WHEBITERR
Y [B] S %4 5 3 8L R )T MU
it WENEFPHRERE
MRBRRF - TREERNEE
YA RAE S IR R GR B0 (B
MRBETERNEN - EEE
R WENEEERES -
i 8 B U A 25 7R B 4 S I~ T
ARBORGBRR BE-T
Z=FRA=1TH RELH
5677 B AR A A E B E 15
< ARNRF AN HRIENE
e

a. BHe—_ZT-_=FxA=
+H - AR RERIH
B R AERES
RARREFRAAZE

EBENERABROBAR
¥ 188,785 F (=T =
—F+=—A=+—8:

ANE#465,489F 7t) °

b. HEZ_ZE_=FxA=
+8 - NARHEER
MERAFRZEELEN
ZAMOBAREOT
(ZE-—F+=-A=+
—A: AR¥16,215F
JT) ©
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Balance of related parties receivables

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

BB S (&

(6) EAEESEWRIAEREE

30 June 2023 31 December 2022
“B-=EXB=TH I S =
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REE:) (@z5)
Provision Provision
Book for Book for
balance bad debts balance bad debts

RS RRER RaAE ZRER

Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. REHTHTERRAR 629,473 31,936 727819 32011
Shan Mei Ling Qiu Bi Xing Industry WEBFHEERHEERAR

Development Co., Ltd. 8,500 8,500 8,500 8,500
BYD Auto Finance Co,, Ltd. hEEAEeRERAT 76,787 2,253 204,548 6,026
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., L. IMEB L ZaHER TEERA 24,472 16,262 24,489 15,585
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus BNE L DaFEREE

Co., Ltd. BRAT 764,900 211,416 842,536 80,909
Tianjin Hongdi Financial Lease Co., Ltd. RELERANEERAA 529 524 541 524
Beiling Hualin Loading Co., Lid. IRENRREBRAT 31,355 3471 35,035 677
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. RENEhREREARAT 34,074 = 91,246 -
Shenzhen Dipai Zhixing Technology Co., Ltd. ATEEBRTREARAR 8,125 236 14,664 430
Shenzhen Shell BYD Flectric Veicle Investment R JIZkieH Bl EE) A KA

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries BRAERATATA 264 36 64 1
Yinchuan Sky Rail Operation Co., Ltd. B EDELERAA 33,358 33,358 33,358 33,358
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. RBETEPHERRER

and its subsidiaries SN 152,059 1,227 262,369 1,808
Shenzhen BYD International Financial Leasing A EEBRREREARAT

Co., Ltd. 3,466 3,466 3,466 3,466
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology Rl # 8B SRR AR A

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries REFRF 15,757 14,267 16,077 14,124
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Lid. and ~ AE&NREEARAALETAA

its subsidiaries 290 9 24 1
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. L EHEMEHERRARA 164,860 4713 12,708 110
Meihao Travel (Hangzhou) Automotive EHRTOUN) SEREER A

Technology Co., Ltd. 1,145 7 6,323 50
Wuxi Yiwen Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. ERENETHRBRAR 19,075 = 14,204 -
Shenzhen Shangshui Intelligent Co., Ltd. ATk BERNERAE 51,761 = 82,390 -
LA SkyRail Express Holding LLC LA SkyRail Express Holding LLC 9,493 82 18,721 162
Chengxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. and its BHERERRNERAR

subsidiaries 69,281 - - -
BYD UZBEKISTAN FACTORY LLC BYD UZBEKISTAN FACTORY LLC 239,639 2,061 - -
Foshan Greifen New Energy Co., Ltd. and its @%m M WAERERAAR

subsidiaries FAT 17 = - -

2,338,680 333,824 2,399,178 197,742

The amounts due from related parties are interest-free, JE UK BR BSE 5 OB AT R B - IR

unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment.

- AEEEERY -
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30 June 2023
—E-=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

16. RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS 16 - BB S (&)
(CONTINUED)
(7)  Balance of related parties payables (7) BEEESPERUIERREE
30 June 31 December
2023 2022
ZECZE —g-
~A=t+H +ZA=+—8°
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBHE3H) (&st)
Shenzhen BYD International Financial Leasing At BB AR EERAR
Co., Ltd. 93,214 93,214
Tianjin BYD Automobile Co., Ltd. RELD#HABEERAF 37,035 33,076
Shenzhen Energy Sales & Service Co., Ltd. RERRREEERAR 969 614
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. LEmAESMERAR 31,043 133
Guangzhou Guang Qi BYD New Energy Bus Co., Ltd. BME AL Sl REEEER QA 204,293 236,880
Hangzhou BYD Xihu New Energy Auto Co., Ltd. MM R B BRAR 7,138 4,637
Shenzhen Shell BYD Flectric Vehicle Investment Co.,  #YIZ L BB B R EBR AT
Ltd. and its subsidiaries REFRA = 1,172
Dongguan Tec-Rich Engineering Co., Ltd. REmEhERLEERAT 297,649 184,967
Shenzhen Microgrid Digital Technology Co., Ltd. FTHAHENRERAF 2,503 2,680
Shenzhen Faurecia Automotive Parts Co., Ltd. and FBERTEDHERAAR
its subsidiaries SN 2,067,949 2,787,171
Shenzhen UBTECH Robotics Co., Ltd. FIMELERERHBRAF] = 270
Shenzhen Didi New Energy Vehicle Technology Co., R iE# s R SER AR DA R
Ltd. and its subsidiaries HFRA 339 67
BYD TOYOTA EV Technology Co., Ltd. HEHERESEREERAA 33,560 41,818
Shenzhen Dipai Zhixing Technology Co., Ltd. AR STRRERAT = 43
Shenzhen Shangshui Intelligent Co., Ltd. AT EAKEREROBRAT 449,921 300,699
Chengxin Lithium Group Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries  BTiEaEEBRHER AR KA FAH = 471,605
Sichuan Road and Bridge Group Co., Ltd. OB ERREERNBRAR 17,924 89,670
Youngy Investment Holding Group Co., Ltd. BEREEREEFR AR - 4
Foshan Greifen New Energy Co., Ltd. and BILTRHSTEREBRARR
its subsidiaries LS NS 330,333 402,003
Wuxi Yiwen Electronic Technology Co., Ltd. BHENETHEERAR 1,009 14,170
Tianjin Sanying Precision Instruments Co., Ltd. REZHRRRESRHBRAF 25,165 -
Hebei Haiwei Electronic New Material Technology BREFHMHRERAERDA
Co., Ltd. 16,185 -
Guangdong CHNBEL Energy Technology Co., Ltd.  BRT ELRRIEERAH 20,316 -
3,636,545 4,664,893
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(8) Monetary funds deposited with related parties

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—“E-=FA=1H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

BB S (&

(8) FHEBINEBES

30 June 31 December
2023 2022
—E-=F —F-—
AHA=+H +ZA=+—H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REE) (&st)
BYD Auto Finance Co., Ltd. thd R E SR AR A A 7,066,214 4,738,542

The annual interest rate of the above deposits for the
current period is 3.1%-3.2% above the benchmark
interest rate published by the People’s Bank of China
for deposits of the same period, and an interest income
of RMB129,476,000 was recognised in January to
June 2023 (2022: 3%-3.2%, and an interest income of
RMB194,163,000 was recognised in January to June

2022).

ANEA Bl 77 S A R AR R A B A R R
TAMHRBEREENE EFA
31%-32% —EBE-_=F—F XA
R BUWAANRE129 476 F 0(=F
T FE 3%-32% — T - —F—
ERNAERFBEWAARK194,163
FIT) e
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE 17 AREEEE
(1)  Assets and liabilities measured at fair value (1) HUAREBEFAENEENARE
30 June 2023 (Unaudited) —E-=FEXA=THCGREE

Fair value measurement using

MABENBERNBAE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

EE7 EEFT
ERMERE BERAE 2 BEBAE

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E-ER FZERX FZER B3t

Financial assets held for trading RHMeHEE = 13,064,442 = 13,064,442
Other equity instrument investments HiESTARE 1,306,210 2,121,852 1,769,852 5,197,914
Other current assets HiFHEE = 46,090 = 46,090
Other non-current financial assets HikEroemeE = 1,102,693 1,326,401 2,429,094
Receivables financing e IERE = 7,682,528 = 7,682,528

1,306,210 24,017,605 3,096,253 28,420,068

Financial liabilities held for trading RotEHEE = 140,697 = 140,697

- 140,697 - 140,697
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B % ¥R AR M R

17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

1) Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

(continued)

31 December 2022 (Audited)

]
i
s
M

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

F (Il*>

UAARBEFEBENEENES )

—E-—E+-A=1+—H(RHH)

Fair value measurement using
R BEAEERNBEAE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

EZA BEART

ERTSRE BRGAE  BEGAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F-ER FZER FZER G
Financial assets held for trading RoHtEHEE - 20,626,930 - 20,626,930
Other equity instrument investments HtERmTARE 912,173 1,679,286 1,827,125 4,418,584
Other current assets e neEE - 213,257 - 213,257
Other non-current financial assets AR epEE - 908,294 1,238,846 2,147,140
Receivables financing EWFERE - 12,894,284 - 12,894,284
912,173 36,322,051 3,065,971 40,300,195
Financial liabilities held for trading RotERAE - 54,605 - 54,605
- 54,605 - 54,605
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B % R AR M AL

30 June 2023
—E-=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 17 - AAEBEEEGE)
(2) Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value (2) UAREBEEBENEENARE
30 June 2023 (Unaudited) ZEZZFEARNA=ZTHCREER
Fair value measurement using
DMEETEERNEAE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
BZW BERW
EEMSHE LA DN L E PN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
E-BR EZBR EZEBR &it
Long-term receivables REBEUG = 4,985,692 = 4,985,692
Other non-current liabilities Hikngas = 3,160,311 = 3,160,311
Bank borrowings and bond payables RITEFRENER = 23,909,600 = 23,909,600
- 32,055,603 - 32,055,603
31 December 2022 (Audited) —E_—F+ZA=+—RH(KEHE)
Fair value measurement using
DREEIEBERNGAE
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs Total
EE g EEAT
ERMSEE BREA\E BRAAE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
£-EX  2-ER  EZEX At
Long-term receivables RIS - 1,118,637 - 1,118,637
Other non-current liabilties EtERYEE - 3,079,533 - 3,079,533
Bank borrowings and bond payables FITERRERNES - 18,517,461 - 18,517 461
- 2715631 - 2715631
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

©)

Fair value valuation

Management has assessed that the fair values of
monetary funds, trade receivables, other receivables,
bills payables, trade payables, bank borrowings and
other payables approximate to their carrying amounts
due to short term to maturities.

Management measures long-term receivables, lease
liabilities and other non-current liabilities using their
present values. The fair values approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The Group’s finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments and
reports directly to the person in charge of accounting
institution. At each balance sheet date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of
financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed
and approved by the person in charge of accounting
institution.

The fair values of the financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined at the amount at which the
assets could be exchanged or the liabilities settled
between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s
length transaction, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used to estimate the fair values.

The fair values of the long-term receivables, long-term
borrowings and bond payables have been calculated
by discounting the future cash flows using market
rate of return currently available for other financial
instruments with similar contractual terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. On 30 June 2023, the Group’s
own non-performance risk for long-term borrowings and
bond payables was assessed to be insignificant.

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

EERE G

D REEME

ERECKAHETERES  BUK
B HEAGR - BNRE - BAER
o RITER - RMEARE - BE
BRI - ARBERKREEER

ot

e

PR RPEY  HEBEMEMIE
REBEE  BEEUREFE AR
BEREKEEEMRS

AEENMBHARHTEMITAR
REEFENBEMEF X EERA
TEGRBEAEARS - BEEE
BEXRA  MHEOMERTABE
2 wEAEEANZIZRAE
TETESTHEBEEEABTZIAE -

TREENEHAENAAEE - U
ERFRGH  ATBRNORZET
HREETEERBREBHBENS
BEE MARRELESBERER
THEE - ATIEMBRARE
NA(EE -

REIEUGR - REIER - BAEHR
BARBRERETELBELAAE
B - LLEEUARIER - AR
FIp IR EM SR T ENmHRES
ERIERWHRE - T =F R A=1
B S$TEREER  BNEFSES
TRARBRFEATERK -
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BF % ¥R AR M RE

30 June 2023

— = —

=

17.

—FNA=1H
RMB'000 AR®TIT

DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED)

)

Fair value valuation (continued)

The fair values of listed equity instrument investments
are based on quoted market prices. For restricted
shares and unlisted equity instrument investments,
the Group adopts recent transaction method or the
valuation techniques to determine the fair values.
Valuation techniques include market multiples and
option pricing model, etc. The fair value measurement
of these financial instruments may involve important
unobservable inputs such as enterprise value/revenue
(“EV/Revenue”) ratio and liquidity discount. The fair
value of the financial instruments measured in Level 3
on a recurring basis was not significantly sensitive to a
reasonable change in these unobservable inputs. The
Group believes that the estimated fair values resulting
from the valuation technique and the related changes
in fair values are reasonable, and they were the most
appropriate values at the balance sheet date.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
contracts which are the foreign currency forward
contracts with banks and adopts valuation techniques
similar to forward pricing and present value methods
for measurement. The model incorporates various
market observable inputs including the credit quality
of counterparties, spot and forward foreign exchange
rates and yield curve. The carrying amounts of foreign
currency forward contracts are the same as their fair
values.

For the wealth management products at fair value
through profit or loss, the Group will estimate their fair
values by using a discounted cash flow valuation model
based on the market interest rates of instruments with
similar terms and risks.

EERE G

D REEMEGE

IR TAEKRE  UMERER
EAREE - HNBRERE - FEL™
Mikm TERE - RIS A
ERAGERNEEEEAAEE
HERMEETSRECE - BiEEE
RASE - EARBEMNGERATE
DA AER2E LI EEES
WA (TEV/Revenue ) L& ~ RENIEST
HE - BEF=ZBRAAABELEN
CHMIAHELETABEGAENE
BB EE AR o KEBIEE
NEERMESTN AR BEREE
B RAEHN YANTERBEARE
XAZESENEE -

AREBERITAIIZTITESRTEAR
Rl BINEEHIAR - RABLURE
HEBNRRETENHERIMETT
FTE - RERE T ZEMIS A BRE
MEBAE BREXZEHFHNERE
B - BV BACE R ADF R AR - S
R RMNETEEEDAEBER
[a

RanBEFERLEEF AR
BYEMR  AREENAGRERER

EREMEELGHEAAEBE-
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Unobservable inputs

Below is the summary of significant unobservable
inputs for main fair value measurement in Level 3:

B % ¥R AR M R

30 June 2023
—E-_=FA=1+H
RMB'000 AR#TIT

17 DAREEREGE

TUEERAE

IMTREIENFE=ZERAABEFE
MEZRTABERBAERL :

105

30 June 2023 (Unaudited) —ECZEXNAZTHGRESEH
Fair value
atthe end of  Valuation
the Period technique Unobservable inputs Effects on fair value

BMRDAEE HERN TABEGAE HAREBENRE
Other equity instrument 223,242  Market approach Average EV/Revenue The higher the ratio, the
investments ratio higher the fair value
Hitgm TARE misA THREBE/MALE LEES - AREE8S
Other equity instrument 1,546,610 Option pricing Volatility of underlying The higher the volatility,
investments model asset price the lower the fair value
HithiEm TARE HEEBER ENEEBRNKDE WEBEMS - AR EEY

15
Other non-current financial 1,326,401 Investment Net value of investment The higher the net value,
assets underlying net value underlying the higher the fair value
method
HwdensemEE RERNRFEE KRERNIFE FESE  AnEESS
31 December 2022 (Audited) TEIH+Z A=+ —HEER
Fair value
atthe end of  Valuation
the year  technique Unobservable inputs Effects on fair value

FRAREE (HERM TABREAE HRAEENTE
Other equity instrument 1,413,857  Market approach Average EV/Revenue ratio  The higher the ratio, the
investments higher the fair value
HitERm TARE misE THCEBE/MALE LEES - AREESS
Other equity instrument 413,268  Option pricing Volatility of underlying The higher the volatility,

investments model asset price
HiEm TARE HiREE BIRE BRI EEERAKEE
Other non-current financial 1,238,846  Investment Net value of investment

assets underlying net value
method
Hi3EnBemaE REBEFEZL

underlying

REBHNRFE

the lower the fair value
BEEYE - AnEEBER
1®

The higher the net value,
the higher the fair value

FEMS  AREEYES
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 17 - AAEBEEEGE)
(5)  Adjustment of fair value measurement (5) DAAREBEFENALH
Below is the adjustment information of continuous fair BENE=ZEBRXALBEFENAD
value measurement in Level 3: EEWT :
January-June 2023 (Unaudited) “EZ=F-FEXRACGRKE
Changes in
unrealised
Total gains o losses gains or losses
EBNGIRALE of assets held
Through atthe end
Transfer Through other of the period
Opening Transfer out of profit - comprehensive Closing - through profit
balance o Level3 Level3 or loss income  Purchases balance orloss
HRERN
EEfA
BRNER
) g\ L iARA B AERAG
BE  EZER FZER HABE  GAUE BE BE FBxNED
Other equity instrument investments £t ERTERE 1,821,125 = (24,670) = (32,603) - 1,769,852 =
Other non-current financal assets EbEREeREE 1208806 18710 - (25,353) - 99198 1,326,401 (25,353)
3,065,971 18710 (24,670) (25,353) (32,603) 99198 3,096,253 (25,353)
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17. DISCLOSURE OF FAIR VALUE (CONTINUED) 17 - AREEEE(E)
Adjustment of fair value measurement 5) AQAEEFTENAGGE
(continued)
2022 (Audited) TECCF(REG
Changes in
unrealised
Total gains or losses gains or losses
EEfIRd AR T of assets held
Through atthe end
Transfer Through other of the year
Opening Transfer outof profit - comprehensive Closing  through profit
balance to Level 3 Level 3 or loss income  Purchases balance or loss
ExiEn
AEA
BRNEE
£ g\ Bl tAEM EX AEHIG
BE O FSER O FZER HABR HAUE BE BE dEkng
Other equity instrument investments ~ EHEAT 2% 803,387 571,797 (33.257) - 679,603 19505 1,827,1% -
Other non-current financial assets ~ EftERBSHEE 194,787 40,000 - 23,269 - 980790 1238846 23,269
998,174 97,797 (33.267) 23269 679603 1100385 3085971 23,269
Transfers among fair value hierarchies 6) AAEBEEEXRER

(6)

During the Period from January to June 2023, the fair
value of other equity instrument investments held by
the Group was transferred from Level 3 to Level 1 due
to the release of lock-up period, with a transfer amount
of RMB24,670,000. Certain financial instruments of the
Group were valued using Level 3 valuation techniques
as there were no observable inputs available, and their
fair values were transferred from Level 2 to Level 3,
with a transfer amount of RMB13,710,000. Except for
this, there were no other significant transfers among fair
value hierarchies of financial instruments of the Group
during the Period.

In 2022, the other equity instrument investment held
by the Group had quotations in an active market
due to the release of lock-up period, and its fair
value was transferred from Level 3 to Level 1, with a
transfer amount of RMB33,257,000. Certain financial
instruments of the Group were valued using Level 3
valuation techniques as there were no observable
inputs available, and their fair values were transferred
from Level 2 to Level 3, with a transfer amount of
RMB297,797,000. Except for this, there were no other
significant transfers among fair value hierarchies of
financial instruments of the Group in 2022.

RZZE-_=F—=NA8H  ~£E
BANEMER T BEKRERARSHR
B ERAABERE=ZERIEAS
—EX - BReEAARYE24670F
JC o AR EH D ¢ r T A EEEER
AR ABMXA S ZE X T
EE TBEAABERE-EX
HBREIANE—BR BEREEAARE
13,710F 7L © Brith 2 4h - RNEFAREE
TRIANAREBERBIZEELM
BEAERZ -

R-ZZE-—FE  AEEFEHHEAM
Hm T ERERREHHER  FEG
BWERE EAABERE=ZEX
@A%fEm EREHAARE
33257F e AREH R T AR
EAERABREGAEMEAE=E
KA ERIT T AMEE  TEEARE
BERFEF_EAEBIE=ER BB
SEAARME297 797 T IT - Bt 2
S ZEZFEAEESHBHTIAN
NABERERzBEHLhEREE -
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18.

19.

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

On August 26, 2023, the Company held the 34th meeting
of its seventh board of directors and agreed to sign an
acquisition framework agreement between its controlling
subsidiary BYD Electronics (International) Co., Ltd. and Jabil
Inc. or its subsidiaries, to acquire certain business with a cash
consideration of approximately RMB15.8 billion (equivalent
to US$2.2 billion). The business primarily comprises the
product manufacturing business in Chengdu and Wuxi,
China, including the manufacturing of components for existing
customers. This agreement was signed on August 26, 2023.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board on 28 August 2023.

18

19

BEERERARENR

—E-=ZFNA=+AB " RRIBHEELE
EESE-THAEE REZERTAAL
5imE T (FER) AR AR EJabil Inc.skHE T
BFAREITRBERB®E  UHOARYE
16588 (LE22BET) RSB EE TR
i EEHNEMEEREER  PERER
POTHHEEREER - ZBEN T =
—FNAZFREHEE -

FiM B ®E

EXZgER-Z_=F N A+ N\AEHRLE
RIETEPBRE -
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